
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regeneration and 
Development Panel 
 
 

Agenda 
 
 

Tuesday, 19th October, 2021 
at 4.30 pm 
 
 
 
in the 
 
 
 

Assembly Room, Town Hall Saturday 
Market Place, King’s Lynn and available to 
view live at WestNorfolkBC on You Tube 

 
 

 
 

 

https://www.youtube.com/user/WestNorfolkBC


 

 
 
 
 
King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 1EX 
Telephone: 01553 616200 
 
Friday 8th October 2021 
 
Dear Member 
 
Regeneration and Development Panel 
 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the above-mentioned Panel which will be held 
on Tuesday, 19th October, 2021 at 4.30 pm in the Assembly Room, Town Hall, 
Saturday Market Place, King's Lynn PE30 5DQ to discuss the business shown 
below. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
Chief Executive 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1.   Apologies for absence   

 To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.   Minutes  (Pages 5 - 11) 

 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting. 

3.   Declarations of Interest   

 Please indicate if there are any interests which should be declared.  A 
declaration of interest should indicate the nature of the interest (if not already 
declared on the Register of Interests) and the agenda item to which it relates.  
If a disclosable pecuniary interest is declared, the Member should withdraw 
from the room whilst the matter is discussed. 
 
Those declarations apply to all Members present, whether the Member is part 
of the meeting, attending to speak as a local Member on an item or simply 
observing the meeting from the public seating area. 

4.   Urgent Business   



 To consider any business which, by reason of special circumstances, the 
Chair proposes to accept as urgent under Section 100(b)(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act, 1972. 

5.   Members Present Pursuant to Standing Order 34   

 Members wishing to speak pursuant to Standing Order 34 should inform the 
Chair of their intention to do so and what items they wish to be heard before a 
decision on that item is taken.   

6.   Chair's Correspondence   

 If any. 

7.   Discover King's Lynn Renewal Proposal for a Second Term (30 minutes)  
(Pages 12 - 128) 

 To consider the report and make any appropriate recommendations to 
Cabinet. 
 
Representatives from the Business Improvement District will also be present 
at the Meeting and Members will have the opportunity to ask questions on the 
Business Plan and their priorities.  

8.   Christmas Market Update (5 minutes)  (Verbal Report) 

 To receive a verbal update from representatives from the Business 
Improvement District and the relevant Portfolio Holder. 

9.   Tree Planting and Development Sites (30 minutes)  (Pages 129 - 136) 
 

10.   CIL Cabinet Report (20 minutes)  (Pages 137 - 147) 

 To consider the report and make any appropriate recommendations to 
Cabinet. 

11.   To consider how the Panel can assist to develop policy/strategy on the 
Long Term Visions for Town Centres (20 minutes)  (Verbal Report) 

 To discuss the way forward and how the Panel can assist to develop Policy. 

12.   Proposals from Councillor Bubb - Two proposals for the Waterfront (10 
minutes)  (Verbal Report) 

 The Chair has invited Councillor Bubb to the meeting to present his ideas for 
the Waterfront. 

13.   Portfolio Holder Question and Answer Session (15 minutes)  (Page 148) 

 Questions should be submitted to the Democratic Services Officer in advance 
of the meeting. 
 
Attached is a response from Councillor Blunt to a question asked by Councillor 
Gidney at the previous meeting. 



14.   Work Programme and Forward Decision List  (Pages 149 - 156) 
 

15.   Date of the next meeting   

 To note that the next meeting of the Regeneration & Development Panel is 
scheduled to take place on Tuesday 7th December 2021 at 4.30pm in the 
Town Hall, Saturday Market Place, King’s Lynn. 

16.   Towns Fund - Verbal Update (5 minutes)  (Verbal Report) 

 To receive a verbal update from officers.  If required, responses to questions 
may require the Panel to exclude the Press and Public.  The below resolution 
to be considered if appropriate: 
 
“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on 
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act”. 

 
To: 
 
Regeneration and Development Panel: Miss L Bambridge, P Beal, F Bone, 
C Bower, Mrs J Collingham (Chair), C J Crofts, M de Whalley, P Gidney (Vice-Chair), 
B Jones, C Manning, C Morley and D Whitby 
 
Portfolio Holders: 
Councillor Middleton – Portfolio Holder for Business, Culture and Heritage 
Councillor Blunt – Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and Development 
Councillor Dark – Leader of the Council 
  
Officers: 
Lorraine Gore – Chief Executive 
Alan Gomm – Planning Policy Manager  
David Ousby – Assistant Director – Companies and Housing Delivery 
Stuart Ashworth – Assistant Director – Environment and Planning 
Duncan Hall – Assistant Director – Regeneration, Housing and Place 
 
By Invitation: 
Vicky Etheridge – Discover King’s Lynn 
Sharon Edwards – Chair, Discover King’s Lynn 
Councillor Bubb – Agenda item 12 



 
221 

 

BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN & WEST NORFOLK 
 

REGENERATION AND DEVELOPMENT PANEL 
 

Minutes from the Meeting of the Regeneration and Development Panel held 
on Tuesday, 7th September, 2021 at 4.30 pm in the Assembly Room, Town 

Hall, Saturday Market Place, King's Lynn PE30 5DQ 
 

PRESENT: Councillors J Collingham (Chair), L Bambridge, P Beal, F Bone, C 
Bower, C J Crofts, M de Whalley, P Gidney, C Morley, V Spikings (substitute for 

C Manning), A Tyler (substitute for B Jones), and D Whitby. 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDERS: 
Councillor R Blunt – Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and Development 
Councillor G Middleton – Portfolio Holder for Business, Culture and Heritage  
 
BY INVITATION:  
Councillor Rust 
Vicky Etheridge – King’s Lynn Business Improvement District 
 
OFFICERS: 
Duncan Hall – Assistant Director 
Alan Gomm – Planning Policy Manager 
Hannah Wood-Handy – Principal Planner 

 

RD39:   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Manning and 
Jones. 
 

RD40:   MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED: The minutes from the previous meeting were agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

RD41:   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

There was none. 
 

RD42:   URGENT BUSINESS  
 

There was none. 
 

RD43:   MEMBERS PRESENT PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER 34  
 

There was none. 
 

5

Agenda Item 2



 
222 

 

RD44:   CHAIR'S CORRESPONDENCE  
 

There was none. 
 

RD45:   BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UPDATE  
 

Click here to view the recording of this item on You Tube. 
 
The Chair welcomed Vicky Etheridge from King’s Lynn Business 
Improvement District to the meeting who provided the Panel with an 
update on the organisation, as attached. 
 
The Chair thanked Vicky Etheridge for her presentation and invited 
questions and comments from the Panel, as summarised below. 
 
Councillor Bone asked if there were any plans to extend the BID area 
to include Industrial Estates which could generate more income.  Vicky 
Etheridge explained that this was something that could be explored if 
the BID went to a second term. 
 
Councillor Tyler asked if there was a demand for national leisure 
businesses and Vicky Etheridge explained that it depended on suitable 
premises and organisations, but this was more of a Borough Council 
issue. 
 
Councillor de Whalley asked if information was available on the 
demographic of visitors to King’s Lynn.  Vicky Etheridge explained that 
work had been carried out by Vision King’s Lynn and regional and 
national study results were also available.  The Assistant Director also 
made reference to the Towns Fund and a survey carried out by the 
Federation of Small Businesses and provided information on barriers to 
the market and recovery. 
 
Councillor Rust commented that new retailers into the town centre had 
to pay the BID Levy although they were not part of the ballot process 
and the impact the levy had on small businesses.  She made reference 
to vacant units in the town centre and was concerned that there was a 
lot of organisations offering business advice and feared duplication of 
what was being offered by the BID.  She also referred to the first BID 
ballot which was unsuccessful.  Vicky Etheridge explained that 
regulations allowed for the ballot to be re-run and the boundary had 
been amended for the second ballot.  She acknowledged that 
businesses that voted no still had to pay the levy and she encouraged 
all businesses to make the most of the BID by putting their views 
forward and engaging in the available opportunities such as free 
courses and seminars.   
 
In response to a question from Councillor Bambridge, Vicky Etheridge 
explained that the BID signposted businesses and could provide 

6

https://youtu.be/JXQbksoKPc8?t=197


 
223 

 

information on grant funding opportunities available, such as Covid 
recovery funding. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Tyler, the Assistant Director 
provided information on the results of a recent survey which provided 
information on barriers for entry and potential future options for the 
town centre, incorporating entertainment and leisure. 
 
Councillor Beal commented that the types of shops in King’s Lynn 
needed to be diversified and the basic needs for shoppers needed to 
be met. 
 
RESOLVED: The report was noted and the Panel would like a further 
update in a years’ time. 
 

RD46:   OPPOSITION MEMBERS ITEM - START UP UNITS AND SHORT 
TIME RENTALS - REQUEST FROM COUNCILLOR RUST  
 

Click here to view the recording of this item on You Tube. 
 
At the invitation of the Chair, Councillor Rust presented her item to the 
Panel, as included in the Agenda.  She referred to vacant shops in the 
town centre, how small and new businesses could be encouraged into 
the town centre, support for start-up businesses and pop up shop 
opportunities.  
 
The Assistant Director explained that this was a national issue and 
needed careful management.  One option could be to procure 
expertise to look at this in more detail, but it may well need subsidising. 
 
The Chair, Councillor Collingham felt that it was important to have a 
scheme in place and there were lots of spaces in the town centre that 
could accommodate opportunities. 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Business, Culture and Heritage explained that 
vacant units was a national issue and the idea of pop up shops was 
something that could potentially be looked at by King’s Lynn BID, of 
which he was a Board Member and the Borough Council was a levy 
payer.  The Borough Council also needed to define their role in any 
schemes, for example would they have a ‘hand-up’ or ‘hand-out’ role 
and caution would need to be exercised. 
 
Councillor Bambridge made reference to the Markets Informal Working 
Group which had previously looked at trying to reinvigorate the Market 
offer and recruit a Market Toby.  She felt that offering small and new 
businesses the opportunity to have pop up market stalls would be a 
good idea. 
 
Councillor Spikings commented that the Market was important and 
shouldn’t be allowed to die, opportunities were being missed if the 

7

https://youtu.be/JXQbksoKPc8?t=3471


 
224 

 

Council did not act now.  She referred to the huts used for previous 
Christmas Markets and suggested that these could be used for pop up 
stalls to promote new businesses. 
 
The Chair suggested a trial event, perhaps to tie in with a Christmas 
Market, to promote local and small businesses. 
 
Councillor Beal commented that internet shopping had a detrimental 
impact on High Streets and a visit to King’s Lynn needed to be an 
experience and that the Council should work with the owners of vacant 
units to explore opportunities. 
 
Councillor Bone felt that a lot of the units in King’s Lynn could be too 
big for new and small businesses and suggested that an Emporium 
type shop, based on commission, could be set up where small 
businesses could hire a small space in a bigger unit. 
 
Councillor Morley suggested that officers produce a pilot package for 
Markets and start up units which could be considered by the Panel at 
the next meeting. 
 
The Vice Chair, Councillor Gidney commented that a Christmas Market 
which appealed to families and included entertainment would be a 
good place to start.  He asked if there were statistics available on new 
businesses, vacant units and trends.  The Assistant Director explained 
that this was something he could look into providing. 
 
Councillor de Whalley commented that a better market offer would 
draw people into the town centre and felt that a post-pandemic strategy 
to revitalise the town centre and the market was necessary.  He also 
hoped that the BID could look into the provision of pop up shops and 
start up units. 
 
Councillor Bambridge commented that competition on the market was 
a good thing, for example one of each type of stall should not be 
limited. 
 
Councillor Whitby suggested that the first step should be to look at the 
demand, then options could be considered. 
 
The Chair, Councillor Collingham hoped that plans to deliver a 
Christmas Market could be considered as the first step, promotion was 
important and it should aim to showcase local small businesses.  She 
asked the Panel to consider a recommendation to Cabinet to take this 
forward. 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Business, Culture and Heritage, Councillor 
Middleton explained that he would take the comments of the Panel 
back to the Cabinet, officers and the BID so that options could be 
considered and a Working Group of Councillors could be involved if 

8



 
225 

 

required.  He commented that a potential market could tie in with the 
Christmas Lights Switch on event. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Portfolio Holder for Business, Culture and 
Heritage consider the comments made by the Regeneration and 
Development Panel and report back to the Panel on progress as 
appropriate.  
 

RD47:   UPDATE ON MEDWORTH INCINERATOR  
 

Click here to view the recording of this item on You Tube. 
 
Officers provided the Panel with an update on the Medworth Incinerator 
and provided detail of the role of Local Authorities in the process, as 
attached. 
 
The Chair invited questions and comments from Members, as 
summarised below. 
 
It was confirmed that once the application had been lodged the Council 
would have 14 days to review the consultation representation and the 
Borough Council were considered to be a host Authority as cabling 
would be required in the Borough.  The application would then be 
considered by the Planning Committee in due course. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor de Whalley it was explained 
that written representations were encouraged but Hearings could be 
requested by interested parties.  It was also explained that all relevant 
Local Authority and national policies would be considered. 
 
In response to a question from the Portfolio Holder for Regeneration 
and Development it was confirmed that the applicant would be required 
to provide responses to all the representations made. 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and Development suggested that 
the Panel have a debate on the disposal of waste and the processes 
involved. 
 
It was suggested that the information provided to the Panel would 
benefit all Members and a Member briefing session should be 
arranged.  The Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and Development 
agreed to look at getting something arranged for Members. 
 
RESOLVED: The Panel noted the update and requested to be kept up 
to date on progress as appropriate. 
 

RD48:   PORTFOLIO HOLDER QUESTION AND ANSWER SESSION  
 

Click here to view the recording of this item on You Tube. 
 

9

https://youtu.be/JXQbksoKPc8?t=6361
https://youtu.be/JXQbksoKPc8?t=8265


 
226 

 

No questions had been submitted in advance of the meeting, however 
the Chair permitted the following questions to be asked. 
 
Councillor Gidney asked why a declaration of CIL was required on first 
application instead of when the permission was approved.  The 
Portfolio Holder for Development and Regeneration agreed to respond 
in writing. 
 
Councillor de Whalley asked when the next round of CIL funding would 
be open for bids and the Portfolio Holder for Development and 
Regeneration explained that an post appraisal report on the first round 
of funding would be included in a forthcoming Cabinet report, which 
would also give details of the next round of funding.  It was anticipated 
that this report would also be considered by the Regeneration and 
Development Panel prior to Cabinet. 
 
Councillor Tyler asked if waste collections were affected because of 
Covid would there be a reduction in fees that the Council would have to 
pay.  It was explained that the question was not within the remit of the 
Portfolio Holders present at the meeting, however the Portfolio Holder 
for Business, Culture and Heritage commented that he thought the bulk 
of the contract was based on tonnage. 
 
Councillor Morley asked when Parishes should start to look at 
preparing their applications for CIL funding and the Portfolio Holder for 
Regeneration and Development explained that a timetable would be 
included in the forthcoming Cabinet report. 
 
Councillor Morley asked questions relating to the Governance of the 
Towns Fund Board and funding as he felt that it had excluded member 
input from the Major Projects Board and the Regeneration and 
Development Panel.  It was explained that now that the detail was 
coming through on individual projects there would be the opportunity 
for Member input.  The Portfolio Holders and the Assistant Director 
agreed to provide clarification on the Local Assurance Framework. 
 
The Chair asked for clarification to be presented to the next meeting of 
the Panel. 
 

RD49:   TO CONSIDER HOW THE PANEL COULD ASSIST TO DEVELOP 
POLICY/STRATEGY ON THE LONG TERM VISIONS FOR TOWN 
CENTRES  
 

Click here to view the recording of this item on You Tube. 
 
The Chair asked for this item to be deferred to the next meeting so that 
the Panel could hold a detailed discussion on the way forward. 
 
RESOLVED: The item was deferred. 
 

10

https://youtu.be/JXQbksoKPc8?t=9442


 
227 

 

RD50:   WORK PROGRAMME AND FORWARD DECISION LIST  
 

Click here to view the recording of this item on You Tube. 
 
The following items were suggested for addition to the Work 
Programme. 
 

 The Vice Chair asked if a future item for the Panel to consider could 
be the repurposing of existing buildings to take forward future projects. 

 CITB update. 

 
RESOLVED: The Panel’s Work Programme was noted. 
 

RD51:   DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING  
 

The next meeting of the Regeneration and Development Panel would 
be held on Tuesday 19th October 2021 at 4.30pm in the Assembly 
Room, Town Hall, Saturday Market Place, King’s Lynn. 
 

 
The meeting closed at 7.10 pm 
 

 

11

https://youtu.be/JXQbksoKPc8?t=9512


REPORT TO CABINET 
 

Open Would any decisions proposed : 
 
Be entirely within cabinet’s powers to decide YES 
 
Need to be recommendations to Council      NO 
 
Is it a key decision                                              NO 
   

Any especially 
affected 
Wards 

 
Discretionary  

Lead Member: Cllr.stuart.dark@west-
norfolk.gov.uk 

Other Cabinet Members consulted:  

Other Members consulted:  

Lead Officer: Lorraine Gore 
E-mail: Lorraine.Gore@west-norfolk.gov.uk 
Direct Dial: 01553 616245 

Other Officers consulted: Management Team;  

Financial 
Implications  
YES 

Policy/Personnel 
Implications 
NO 

Statutory 
Implications (incl 
S.17) NO 

Equal 
Opportunities 
Implications NO 

Risk Management 
Implications 
NO 

 

Date of meeting: 20 October 2021 
 
DISCOVER KING’S LYNN (KING’S LYNN BID LTD) RENEWAL PROPOSAL FOR 
A SECOND TERM 2022-2027 
 

Summary 
 
In accordance with Schedule 1, Regulation 4 of the 2004 BID Regulations, the Chair 
of King’s Lynn BID Ltd, on behalf of the Board of Directors, submitted their renewal 
proposal for a second term, and a request to the Local Authority to hold a ballot on 11 
November 2021, to the Chief Executive on 21 September 2021.  
 
Recommendation 
Cabinet is recommended to: 

(a) Endorse the Discover King’s Lynn Business Plan 2022-2027 

(b) Instruct the Chief Executive to vote in favour of the BID on behalf of the 
Council. 

 

Reason for Decision 
To allow the Chief Executive to vote on behalf of the Council in the King’s Lynn BID 
ballot on 11 November 2021.   

1  BACKGROUND 

1.1 In 2016 the Council approved the King’s Lynn BID Business Plan and agreed 
to vote in favour of the ballot and to put in place arrangements to collect the 
levy.  

1.2 The Council has an interest in the ballot in that there are 35 council owned 
premises within the defined area of the BID that are subject to the levy. The 
annual cost of the levy in 2021/2022 is £19,116 

1.3 The Council as an owner of premises in the BID area will be entitled to vote 
when the ballot for a second term is held on 11 November 2021. 

1.4    If the ballot for a second term is successful the BID levy is estimated to 
generate £223,500 of investment each year to support the town centre. 

12

Agenda Item 7



2 OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

2.1 The Council can place a vote for or against the proposal Business Plan or 
abstain. The proposal is led by businesses in the town centre and was seen by 
the Council as the creation of investment that will enhance the environment 
and attract more shoppers, visitors and businesses to King’s Lynn. 

2.2 It is proposed that the Council continues with its support of the BID and the 
Business Plan and instructs the Chief Executive to vote accordingly on behalf 
of the Council. 

3 KING’S LYNN BID BUSINESS PLAN AND KING’S LYNN TOWN 
INVESTMENT PLAN 

 
3.1 The BID has had a role in the development of the King’s Lynn Town 

Investment Plan – a 10-year vision that has identified priority interventions to 
drive economic growth in the town. The government suggested at the start of 
the Towns Fund process in late 2019, that BIDS could play a role in Town Deal 
Boards (TDB). The King’s Lynn BID has played a key role, firstly in respect of 
governance – being a member of the board that has agreed priorities for a 
funding package, as well now overseeing the delivery of those interventions; 
and secondly a role in engagement with town centre stakeholders, including 
BID members and representing their views and sharing their perspectives as 
part of the process. 

  
3.2 Early engagement was vital in the preparation of the Town Investment plan. It 

is important that the role of the BID in relation to Town’s fund continues 

throughout the business case stage (to June 2022), and delivery stages of the 

process. The BID is in a unique position to facilitate a two-way flow of 

information between the TDB and BID members. The programme as agreed 

with central government contains a number interventions that are designed 

directly to address some of the priorities of the BID – including business 

diversification in the town; boosting footfall and dwell time; making the town 

look attractive; increasing pride in the town, creating a sense of community. 

The continued involvement of the BID in shaping the Towns Fund and other 

future ‘place-based’ funds relating to the Levelling Up agenda will ensure that 

funds are directed in an informed way; to deliver the maximum benefit to the 

sustained vitality and prosperity of King’s Lynn town centre. 

 

4 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 The Council has previously indicated its support for the BID 

 
 

13



5 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 If the ballot for a second term is successful the Council will pay a BID levy 

estimated to be £19,116 per year.  The Financial Plan already includes budget 
provision for the BID levy.  

 
 
6 BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 
6.1      Renewal proposal for a second term 2022-2027 attached.  

14



Ms Lorraine Gore 

Chief Executive Mrs Sharon Edwards 

Borough Council of King’s Lynn Discover King’s Lynn 

And West Norfolk King’s Lynn BID Ltd 

King’s Court  C/o 48 King Street 

Chapel Street  King’s Lynn 

King’s Lynn PE30 1HE 

PE30 1EX 

Tuesday 21st September 2021 

Dear Lorraine, 

Re: Discover King’s Lynn (King’s Lynn BID Ltd) Renewal Proposal for a 2nd Term 

As per Schedule 1, Regulation 4 of the 2004 BID Regulations, please accept this letter and 
accompanying documents as Discover King’s Lynn’s (King’s Lynn Bid Ltd) Renewal 
Proposal, and our request to the Local Authority to hold a ballot on 11 November 2021. I 
am submitting this proposal as Chair of King’s Lynn BID Ltd and on behalf of the Board of 
Directors.  

Notice of the intention to hold a ballot was provided to the Secretary of State on 25th June
2021. 

The Proposal includes the following detail and documentation. 

Details of King’s Lynn BID Ltd company status and Board of Directors. 
The BID area for the second term 2022-2027. 
A ratings list extract. 
How the levy will be calculated, eligibility and exemptions. 
An Operating Agreement with the Borough Council regarding billing arrangements for the 
Term. 
Our priorities for a second term and what we propose to deliver, as determined by the 
consultation process and SWOT analysis. 
Details of the consultation. 

15



A cashflow for the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2027, the proposed period for the 2nd 
term. 
The financial management and governance arrangements for the BID. 
A copy of the notification to the Secretary of State. 
Our Business Plan 2022-2027. 

Should you have any queries regarding these documents, please contact Vicky Etheridge, 
BID Manager, E:vicky@discoverkingslynn.com or T: 07387 752 226 

Thank you in advance for your assistance and support.  We feel strongly that now, more 
than ever, King’s Lynn Town Centre needs a BID, and that by working together, we will 
secure a stronger future for the Town. 

Yours Sincerely, 

Sharon Edwards 
Chair, King’s Lynn BID Ltd 

Encs. 

16



Discover King’s Lynn Proposal for a Renewal Ballot for a 
Second Term 2022-2027

This Proposal has been drawn up and submitted to the Borough Council of King’s Lynn and West 
Norfolk by King’s Lynn BID Ltd, trading as Discover King’s Lynn. King’s Lynn BID Ltd is a company 
limited by guarantee, incorporated in April 2017 to run the Business Improvement District for King’s 
Lynn town centre, following a successful ballot in November 2016.  

If successful at ballot, it is proposed that the second term would commence on 1st April 2022 and run 
until 31st March 2027. King’s Lynn BID Ltd would continue to manage and run the BID during this 
period.

Notice of the intention to hold a ballot was provided to the Secretary of State on 25th June 2021, see 
pages 90-91.

King’s Lynn BID Company details

Company No: 10722907

Registered Address: 48 King Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 1HE

Directors:  

Sharon Edwards, Partner, Mapus-Smith & Lemmon

Janette Crawford, Manager, Wilko

Julie Easter, Director, Kenneth Bush Solictors

Michael Baldwin, Owner, Bank House Hotel 

Liz Harrison, Owner, Youngsters World

John Harrison, Owner, BJ Models & DIY

Veronica Sekules, Director, Groundwork Gallery

Alan Bedwell, Manager, Sainsbury’s

Cllr Graham Middleton, Deputy Leader, Borough Council of King’s Lynn & West Norfolk

Jenny Richards, Director, Prontaprint.

1

17



Proposed BID Area 

Following a SWOT analysis and review of how the BID currently operates, the Board agreed to keep 
the BID area and boundary unchanged for a second term. The map and list of streets within the BID 
boundary can be found on pages 12 and 13.

A BID extract, that is the list of hereditaments within the proposed BID boundary, eligible to pay the 
levy as of 20 September 2021 can be found on pages 14 to 22.

BID Levy Rules

How the levy will be calculated
The BID levy will be calculated using the current rateable value shown on the 2017 Non-Domestic 
Rating list for the duration of the five-year BID term from 1st April 2022 - 31st March 2027 (subject to 
the exceptions below).  No adjustments will be made for any exemptions or reliefs, or any changes to 
rateable value for an existing property as a result of the 2023 revaluation.  The levy will be updated 
on an ongoing basis for any changes to the 2017 rateable value.

The BID levy will be calculated using the 2017 Non-Domestic Ratings list for the duration of the BID.  
The exception to this will be any change of use or physical change to a property or hereditament 
including inter alia, new construction, merger, sub-division, extensions, and refurbishment where the 
hereditament has no entry in the 2017 list but enters a subsequent ratings list during the BID term.

The BID levy will have to be paid by a new ratepayer occupying an existing or new rateable property 
within the BID area up until the end of the five-year term on 31st March 2027, even if they did not 
vote in the ballot. Likewise, any new rateable property created during the lifetime of the BID will be 
obliged to pay the levy.

Properties deleted from the Rating List will no longer have to pay the BID Levy from the date they are 
deleted.

By taking this approach, the BID can budget with certainty and is in a stronger position to deliver the 
priorities as set out in the Business Plan 2022-2027. 

The levy rates are not changing, and properties with a rateable value of £7,500 or less will still pay a 
flat rate of £100 per annum.  Properties with a rateable value of over £7,500 will continue to pay a 
levy of 1.5% of the rateable value.  Changes to the 2017 rateable value during the five-year BID term 
will be reflected in the levy charge. 

The BID Levy will be charged annually in advance for each chargeable period to be April to March 
each year. The levy will be a daily charge. The BID levy is paid by the current ratepayer.  If the 
ratepayer changes during the five-year BID term the new ratepayer will be liable to pay the levy from 
the date of occupation.  

VAT and Inflation will not be charged on the levy.

The owners of untenanted properties will be liable for payment of the levy, with no void period.

2

18



Exemptions
Places of Religious Worship and Non-Retail Charities with a rateable value of £7,500 or less will be 
exempt from paying the levy and will not receive a vote in the ballot.

Collection of the Levy
The Borough Council of King’s Lynn & West Norfolk will be responsible for the administration and 
collection of the levy and will charge an annual fee. The fee has been calculated as £4,500 per 
annum. Details of how payment of this fee will be taken are set out in the draft Operating 
Agreement on pages23-35.

Operating Agreement with the Borough Council of 
King’s Lynn & West Norfolk

The draft Operating Agreement between the Borough Council and King’s Lynn BID Ltd is based on the 
Operating Agreements that have been in place and reviewed annually since 2017. It sets out 
arrangements for the billing, collection and recovery of the BIID Levy and the general arrangements 
as to the relationship to be established between BCKLWN and King’s Lynn BID Ltd for the duration of 
the BID. 

The purpose of this Agreement is to: 
• establish the procedure for setting the BID Levy.
• confirm the basis upon which BCKLWN will be responsible for collecting the BID Levy.
• set out the enforcement mechanisms for collection of the BID Levy.
• set out the procedures for accounting and payment of the BID Levy.
• provide for the monitoring and review of the collection of the BID Levy; and
• confirm the way BCKLWN expenses incurred in collecting the BID Levy shall be paid.

3

19



Priorities for a Second Term – Proposed Areas of Activity

Our focus for a second term comes from a review and analysis of what we have achieved during our 
first term, an understanding of the challenges and aspirations of our levy payers, and a SWOT of the 
challenges and opportunities for our town centre economy and a BID over the next five years.  The 
SWOT analysis was undertaken by the BID Board in the autumn of 2020and is available on page 36.

Our budget will be split across the following 4 priorities.

1. To Shout About King’s Lynn Town Centre

We want to attract new and repeat visitors to the town to shop, relax, stay and explore. We will 
raise the profile of the Town as a sub-regional business centre and tourist destination. 

Areas of work under this priority include:

 Delivering a programme of regular events and animations
 Developing the Discover King’s Lynn brand to attract new audiences further afield.
 Campaigns to promote the Town’s strengths
 Working with partners to improve signage and other resources to direct people into and

around the town.

2. To Support and Strengthen Business

Working collaboratively with partners such as the Borough and County Councils, LEP and Norfolk 
BIDs to create an environment where established businesses and new start-ups thrive.

Areas of work under this priority include:

 Providing access to quality business advice, coaching and training.
 Encouraging new and different businesses to the town
 Encouraging and supporting businesses to reduce waste and their environmental impact.
 Continue with our Street Ranger initiative.
 Further develop the Shopwatch group and set up a network for the Night-Time Economy.

3. A Voice for Business and the Town Centre Economy

Now more than ever Business and town centres need a voice and a champion. We have 
developed strong collaborative relationships with public stakeholders and levy payers have told 
us over the course of our consultation period that they want us to continue to do this on their 
behalf. 

Areas of work under this priority include:

 To advocate a town centre focused approach to investment, using our position on the
Town Board and with other funding programmes to influence funding decisions to the
benefit of the town centre.

 To represent town centre business interests to stakeholders in order to raise awareness
of issues and influence allocation of resources and policy development.

 To encourage collaboration amongst and across businesses in the town centre through
regular networking and information sharing opportunities.

4

20



4. To Create Pride in our Town Centre

To build on the strong sense of pride held by many businesses, to do what we can to enhance the 
appearance and attractiveness of the Town. 

Areas of work under this priority include:

 Maximize opportunities for street dressing for example, hanging baskets, bunting and
lighting.

 Use our position on the Town Board and Public Realm Action Group to influence
spending to improve Gateways into town, enhance and encourage a café culture, create
and install temporary improvements to vacant units such as shop jackets, vinyls and art /
lighting installations.

5

21



Consultation

Talking with businesses, getting feedback, sharing information, understanding their challenges is a 
core part of being a BID.  The Pandemic and subsequent lockdowns and re-openings gave us a unique 
opportunity to connect with and support our levy payers and has informed much of what is in our 
Business Plan 2022-2027 and in this Proposal.  

From May 2020 we have held monthly on-line and in person (when able) networking meetings, our 
Street Rangers visit businesses daily, undertaking up to 100 visits a month.  

From January to March this year, we undertook a survey, specifically about the potential priorities for 
a second term.  This survey focused on the work areas of our current business plan, as well as 
potential new areas of work based on our understanding of business need and the changing town 
centre economy. Around 10% of levy payers responded to this levy either on-line or by completing a 
hard copy, delivered by the Street Rangers. A copy of the survey and the collated responses are on 
pages 37-54.

We used the responses from the survey to draft a set of priorities and identified the issues that 
needed to be explored further through discussion. During June and July, we held 9 consultation 
meetings to this end, supplemented by phone calls, emails and face to face meetings. Copies of the 
newsletters and emails that were sent, and hand delivered to all levy payers, from January through 
to September are within this document. These documents encourage levy payers to get involved and 
give information and details about meetings and how to provide comments.

In addition to this we have a levy payer Facebook Group and What’s App group that is used to gather 
feedback, as well as provide information.  

By July, feedback from the consultation meetings had provided a list of priorities for a second term. 
These are reflected in our Business Plan and include.

 Marketing & Events
 Increasing Pride in the Town
 Boosting footfall and dwell time
 Continuing the Street Ranger service
 Promoting King’s Lynn as a tourist destination
 Business development support
 Training for businesses
 Speaking up for Business
 Supporting the night-time economy
 Stimulating diversification of the town centre
 Encouraging business collaboration
 Promoting independents
 Creating a sense of community
 Promoting a café culture
 Improving the attractiveness of Gateways into town.
 Making the town look more attractive
 Reducing business costs and their carbon footprint.

6

22



Draft Business Plan

We produced a draft Business Plan (pages82-89), drawing on these conversations and identified 
priorities, and circulated this to all levy payers from 12th July for a 3-week consultation period. Once 
again, we emailed, and hand delivered copies to ensure that everyone had the opportunity to 
comment and give feedback. 

Business Plan 2022-2027

The final Business Plan takes into account the comments received and is available on pages 92-123. 
This is being sent to all levy payers and will be available on our website.

7

23



Year 1 2 3 4 5

Income

Levy 223,500 223,500 223,500 223,500 223,500

5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

5,000 5,000 5,000 0 0

Total Income 233,500 233,500 233,500 228,500 228,500

83,510 83,510 83,510 83,510 83,510

70,000 70,000 70,000 65,000 65,000

3. A Voice for Business 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000

15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000

5. Operational Costs 30,340 30,340 30,340 30,340 30,340

6. Council Charge 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500

Total Expenditure 233,350 233,350 233,350 228,350 228,350 

45,000 40,000 35,000 35,000 35,000

Budget 2022-2027

24



25



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027 Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

Pu

rfleet Pl

Q
ue

en
 S

t

South Q
uay

Priory Ln

Stonegate St

Tow
er Pl

St James St

Regent Way

K
in

g 
St

Surrey St

H
igh S

t
New Conduit St

Norfolk St

Market Ln

A
lbert St

Austin St

Old Sunway

Albion St

Tow
er St

Majestic
Cinema

King’s Lynn
Corn Exchange

Custom
House

St James Multi-Story
Car Park 

Train
Station

King’s Lynn
Museum

The BID area
The BID area covers the area shown opposite. This is viewed as 
the core business area of the town centre of King’s Lynn. The BID 
boundaries will remain the same, as per 2017 - 2022.

*Only part of this Street is included

The BID covers the following streets

Albert Avenue

Albert Street

Albion Street

Austin Street

Baker Lane

Baxters Court

Baxters Plain

Blackfriars Street

Boal Quay

Boal Street

Broad Street

Burtons Court

Chapel Street

Church Street

Clough Lane

College Lane

Common Staithe Quay

Ferry Lane

Ferry Street

Granary Court

Hardings Way*

High Street

King Staithe Lane

King Street

Market Lane

Millfleet*

Nelson Street

New Conduit Street

Norfolk Street*

Old Market Street

Old School Court

Oldsunway

Paige Stair Lane*

Paradise Lane

Paradise Parade

Paradise Place

Paradise Road

Paradise Street

Priory Lane

Purfleet Quay

Purfleet Street

Queen Street

Railway Road

Regent Place

Regent Way

Saturday Market Place

Sedgeford Lane

South Clough Lane

South Quay

Stonegate Street

St Dominic Square

St James Court

St James Road

St James Street

St Margarets Lane

St Margarets Place

St Nicholas Street

Surrey Street

Surrey Yard

Thoresby College

Tower Place*

Tower Street

Trenowath Place

Tuesday Market Place

Union Lane

Vancouver Centre

Water Lane

White Lion Court

7 8

King's Lynn BID

26



12

King’s Lynn BID

The BID Area
5.1 Introduction 
The BID area will cover the area shown in the map below. This is viewed as 
the core business area of the town centre of King’s Lynn. 

KING'S LYNN

7

6

21 4

3

5

9

8

River G
reat O

use

Gate

Mud

Site of

Priory

Car Park

Pur Fleet

Friars Fleet

Boal Quay

Mill Fleet

South Quay
Hall

Roof Car Park

47

46

29

15 16

21

18

26

37

98
99

27

84

13

14

33

24

10

25

1217

22
20

19

23

80

38

40

39

52

30

32

31

28

73
96

78

34 36

77

76

53 51

6460

5a

45

41

74

65

91
90

61
63

55

2a

42

57

49

56
86

1a48
44

72

54

58

95

69

3a

97

66
70

62

50

59

71

35

43

Timber Yard

Purfleet Quay

11

to

Tower Gardens

St James Park

Tuesday Market Place

Saturday Market Place

Common Staithe Quay

Hillington Square

Pool

Regis

Eagle

El

Hotel

House

FS

Three

Fn

Cinema

Chapel

RO
AD

SD

Court

College

LB

FB

29c

106

59a

20
a

18a

121

17a

137
133

103

139

52a

107

108

19
c

124

26
a

102

104

33a

131

30a

12
3

19a

32
a

101

23a

12
2

99c
100

15a

96a
97a

127

39a

33c

13a

25
a

141

140

150

120

143

14
a

126
129

11
3

114

117

11
8

116

11a

112

115

Jubilee

Mill

Sta

Museum

11
1

El
sd

en
's

SM

St James

Church

Hampton

77d

17b

97b

12b

SQUARE

Offices

PU
R

FLEE
T

The

PH

PC

Ouse House

Town Hall

Riverside

Guildhall

The Stables

Bank House

CH
UR

CH
 STREET

CH
UR

CH
 L

A
NE

Buildings

AUSTIN
 S

T

MP

UNION LANE

NORTH STREET

Q
U

EE
N 

ST
R

EE
T

FERRY STREET

Globe Hotel

SOUTH STREET

St James House

Sailing Club

Area

OLDSUNWAY

K
IN

G
 S

TR
E

ET

The Granaries

BURTONS COURT

SURREY STREET

Fells Warehouse

NELSON STREET

to 4

High Street

MILLFLEET

London Road

Yard

LONDON ROAD

BR
IDG

E STREET

PI
LO

T 
ST

RE
ET

Lovell House

Stable Cotts

CLOUGH LANE

REGENT WAY

Sub

REGENT PLACE

PURFLEET STREET

CH
APEL STR

EET

TO
W

ER
 P

LA
C

E

The Maltin
gs

AUSTIN STREET

Duke's Head Hotel

Norfolk House

May

K
IR

B
Y 

ST
R

E
ET

AUSTIN FIELDS

PROVIDENCE STREET

W
H

ITE LIO
N

 C
O

U
RT

St Nicholas Close

C
H

A
P

EL LA
N

E

NORFOLK STREET

R
A

IL
W

AY

WATER LANE

Bol

Tow
er Street

SEDGEFORD LANE

Priory House

PURFLEET PLACE

COLLEGE LANE

BOAL STREET

Broad Street

103b

St Mary's

PORTLAND STREET

St Nicholas Chapel

Em
m

erich C
ourt

G
R

AN
AR

Y 
C

O
U

R
T

ALB
ERT STREET

The Kings Centre

Freestone Court

BAXTERS COURT

King's Court

AL
B

IO
N 

ST
R

EE
T

WELLESLEY STREET

Corn Exchange

WATERLOO STREET

STANLEY STREET

St Margaret's

SOUTH LYNN PLAIN

El
sd

en
's

 A
lm

sh
ou

se
s

JOHN KENNEDY ROAD

ST
 A

N
N

'S
 S

TR
EE

T

STONEGATE STREET

ST NICHOLAS STREET

BAKER LANE

TRENOWATH PLACE

MARKET STREET

Framingham's Hospital

ST JAMES COURT

Surrey Yard

Old Dairy Units

Bishops Lynn House

St Johns Court

WHITEFRIARS TERRACE

Vancouver House

Crown and Mitre

New Conduit Street

ST JAMES STREET

VALINGERS ROAD

CARMELITE TERRACE

PAR
AD

ISE LAN
E

MARKET LANE

MARSHALL STREET

OLD MARKET STREET

St John's Terrace

to
 1

2

to
 4

2
to

 2
4

57 to

ALB
ERT AVEN

UE

ETL

Pier

BLACKFRIARS STREET

R
A

IL
W

AY
 R

O
A

D

Trinity Quay

ALL SAINTS' STREET

VA
LI

N
G

ER
S'

S 
PL

A
C

E

26 - 28

Mast

4.7m

5.1m

6.4m

6.0m

5.8m

5.7m

5.6m

5.5m

5.4m

5.3m

5.2m

4.0m

4.9m

5.0m

4.3m

PARADISE PARADE

Mon

TCB

BLACKFRIARS ROAD

Water

ST
 J

A
M

ES
' R

O
A

D

PAGE STAIR LANE

Greyfriars C P School

All Saints' Church

St Margaret's Church

Guildhall of Saint George

1 to 9

1 to 2

1 
to

 3

1 to 8

1 to 6

1 
to

 7

7 to 9

2 to 7

3 to 5

ST MARGARET'S LANE

(PH)

Post

M
LW

M
H

W

Crane

Youth

Bank

Gateway

9 to 12

4 to 10

1 to 12

1 to 16

1 to 32

1 to 23

1 to 61

3 to 10

Club

8 to 11

Works

Posts

Cemy

Garage

2 
to

 2
8

1 to 33

(site of)

Depot

91 to 93

14 to 19

12 to 34

26
 to

 2
9

30 to 45

10 to 13

12 to 14

18 to 22

38
 to

 4
4

45
 to

 5
1

33 to 39

49
 to

 5
1

66
 to

 6
9

10
 to

 1
6

74 to 89

14 to 25

46 to 65

15 to 18

17 to 29

38
 to

 5
4

21 to 22

18
 to

 2
0

30 to 38

Vicarage

11 to 12

11 to 37

10
 to

 1
1

CC
LW

Sluice

Tel Ex

92 to 107

Plain

Anglia

Library

Shelter

Sub Sta

29
8 

to
 3

03

122 to 130
312 to 320

Barley

304 to 311114 to 121

Ppg Sta

Warehouse

Play Area

Willdor

Cemetery

Bollard

44
a 

to
 4

4m

(Franciscan)

Custom

Day Nursery

Bollards

Path (um
)

Greyfriars Tower

M
ean Low

 W
ater

Former

founded 1100)

California

El Sub Sta

Glenmoor

Youth Centre

(Austin Friars)

Allinson

PARADISE

Red Cross HQ

FERRY LANE

Government

Bowling Green

Sorting Office

Bus Station

ED
 & W

ard Bdy

ALL SAINTS' ST

Library Court

War Memorial

Landing Stage

M
ean H

igh W
ater

AICKMAN'S YARD

The Green Quay

Depot

1

Sub Sta

25

3

8

39

63

39

1

1

5

14
138

9

24

1

Car Park

37

1

1Bollards

13

17

1

18

50

AU
STIN FIELD

S

56

8

7

1

Car Park

31

5.2m

11

21

5

Sub Sta

45

Court

16

14

Works

Car Park

38

Mud

29

15a

12

1a

40

15

22

7

5.2m

19

24

4.3m

7

3

Works

12

2

16

LB

12

9

PH

5

40

1 to 9

14
El Sub Sta

8

9

PC

St James

5

4.0m

El Sub Sta

5a

PH

23

Bol

1

18

13

AU
ST

IN
 F

IE
LD

S

104

6

40

5

Post

PH

37

2

Mud

30

20

4

JOHN KENNEDY ROAD

25

6

MP

1

Mud

6

100

15a

14

3

Car Park

Sub Sta

Sub Sta

House

1

20

3

29

8

El Sub Sta

26

M
ud

15

8
3

73

5.2m

25

63

2

Hillington Square

10

4

46

24

11

32

15

7

Posts

2

PH

Hall

LB

G
arage

1

4

23

41

8

12

6

2

11

30

5.
5m

8

23

19

1

34

2
5.5m

1

3

4

5

16
21

14

22

Broad Street

7

11

8

14

Sluice

Mud

32

33 to 39

LB

REGENT WAY

M
ean High W

ater

14

MLW

M
ud

4.9m

8

1

TCB

3

3

19

15

5.5m

SEDGEFORD LANE

22

21

33

17

48

2

3

76

1

3

4.9m

25
AUSTIN STREET

55

11

4.0m

61

12

6

5.2m

Depot

11

9

29

3 1

5

MLW

3

9

W
arehouse

55

1

15

Car Park

98

4

5.3m

9

53

PH

4

1

9

25

5.2m

22

77

17

5

M
ud

7

15

1

11

14

30

Car Park

TCB

50

Bollards

24

Timber Yard

7

MP

1

11

2

3

Mud

Hall

River G
reat O

use

1

1

11
4

5.2m

3

Sub Sta

Sta

7

23

Shelter

to

2

OLDSUNWAY

112

Sluice

2

3

36

9

36

7

1

El Sub Sta

18

12

78

1 to 9

Club

40

15

PC

4.9m

6

11

42

6

16

Shelter

Bank

6

95

South Q
uay

9

17

14

121

Bank

18

1 to 3

4

5.2m

24

Posts

17

6

Bollards

24
1

3

3

SM

6

Car Park

60

1

1 13

18

1

2

39

MLW

TCB

5.3m

33

1

Sluice

2

1

10

14

13

17
a

12

Works

51

4

22

5

38

1

SM

15

115

21

21
17

29

32

6

2925

13

4

PC

TCB

12

5

15

11

11

LB

2

LB

16

2

El

10

Car Park

12

El Sub Sta

18

13

MP

1

TCB

10

14
42

27

12

10

26

14

17a

31

Hall

Club

2

22

8

PH

6

FS

10

1

23

41

13

21

34

4

Posts

23

5

16

Mud

Landing Stage

5

CLO
U

G
H

 LA
NE

16

6

80

20

El Sub Sta

6

1

7

2

4

20

7

5

7

3

Mud

14

Car Park

6

20

22

14

5.2m

4

7

21

8

Post

34

17

1

MLW

MLW

20

7

31

8

10

M
ud

5

28

Car Park

1

19

11
11a

7

10

15

SM

17

4.0m

10

H
ig

h 
S

tr
ee

t

M
ean High W

ater

33

5.1m

3

8

34

15

5

6

46

10

3

7

31

Sluice

5.0m

36

El Sub Sta

34

38

12
0

4.9m

MP

1

NORFOLK STREET

ST
 A

N
N

'S
 S

TR
EE

T

3

47

28

2

7

16

27

11

18

6

2

12

10

LB

3

9

19

29

11

1

Tel. 01553 616200  -  Fax. 01553 691663

Project / Details

Title

Drawn by / Department

Date/BID

Red Line Plan

05/02/2014

Jess Cunningham
Robert Wiseman

© Crown copyright and 
database rights 2013 

Ordnance Survey 100024314

1:3,195
Scale

27



1 

Dated xxxxxx 

KING’S LYNN BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT 

(VERSION 1: APRIL 2022) 

Between 

Borough Council of King’s Lynn & West Norfolk (BCKLWN) 

- and -

King’s Lynn BID Group Ltd t/a Discover King’s Lynn 

For the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2027 

28



Page 2 of 13 

Definitions 

BCKLWN: The Billing Authority for the purposes of the Local Government 

Act 2003 and responsible for collecting the BID Levy and 

administering the BID Revenue Account. 

BID Levy: Amount payable by ratepayers in the BID area under the BID 

Regulations and Levy Rules 

BID Period:  1 April 2022 to 31 March 2027 

BID Regulations: The Local Government Act 2003 Part 4 and the Business 

Improvement Districts (England) Regulations 2004 SI 

2004.2443  

BID Year: The period starting 1 April and ending 31 March 

King’s Lynn BID Ltd: Known as King’s Lynn BID Ltd t/a Discover King’s Lynn - The 

body responsible for the operation of the BID and for using the 

BID Levy for the purposes of achieving the BID Arrangements.  

NNDR:  National Non-Domestic Rates 

Rating List: The Non-Domestic Rating List 2017 (or 2023 where 

appropriate) as complied and maintained by the Valuation 

Office Agency   

29



Page 3 of 13 

1 Service Level Agreement 

1.1 This SLA details the arrangements for the billing, collection and recovery of the BIID 

Levy and the general arrangements as to the relationship to be established between 

BCKLWN and King’s Lynn BID Ltd for the duration of the BID.  

The purpose of this Agreement is to: 

• establish the procedure for setting the BID Levy;

• confirm the basis upon which BCKLWN will be responsible for collecting the

BID Levy;

• set out the enforcement mechanisms for collection of the BID Levy;

• set out the procedures for accounting and payment of the BID Levy;

• provide for the monitoring and review of the collection of the BID Levy; and

• confirm the manner in which BCKLWN expenses incurred in collecting the

BID Levy shall be paid.

2 BID Levy Rules 

2.1 The BID Levy for the five-year period of the BID is initially calculated based on the 

property’s Rateable Value (RV) from the 2017 Rating List at the BID start date of 

1.4.2022.  The 2017 RV will be used for the duration of the BID, subject to the 

exceptions at 2.5. 

2.2 The BID Levy will be charged as follows: 

Property and RV Annual BID Levy 

RV £7,500 or less* £100 

RV over £7,500 1.5% of RV 

Exclusions: 

• Places of Religious Worship

• Non-Retail Charity Premises with a RV of £7,500 or

less

£0 

*Any property with a Rateable Value of £0 will be assumed to have a Rateable Value of £1 for

the purpose of the BID Levy 

30



 

Page 4 of 13 
 

2.3 Changes to properties and RVs received after the BID start date of 1.4.2022 will be 

dealt with in the same way as they are for NNDR accounts. 

 

2.4  Where a property RV is adjusted, the BID Levy will be recalculated from the date of 

the change and based on the new RV. 

 

2.5 Properties deleted from the Rating List will no longer be charged the BID Levy from 

the date they are deleted.  

 

2.5  The RV in the 2023 Rating List is to be used where there is a change of use or 

physical change to a property or hereditament including new construction, merger, 

sub-division, extensions, and refurbishment, where the hereditament has no entry in 

the 2017 list but is shown in the 2023 Rating List. 

 

2.6 The BID Levy is chargeable on a daily basis and is payable by the party liable to pay 

NNDR for the property on that day, except where: 

• The liable party is a Company In Administration, and 

• All or part of the BID Levy is unpaid, 

in which case the Owner of the Property (as defined in the Non-Domestic Rates 

legislation) will be requested to pay the BID Levy   

 

2.7 Any change in the party liable to pay NNDR during the year will result in the liability to 

pay the BID Levy being altered from the same date. 

 

3 Collection of the BID Levy 
 
3.1 BCKLWN will issue the BID Levy invoice on, or as soon as reasonably practicable 

before or after, 1 April for each year.   

  

3.2 King’s Lynn BID Ltd will supply BCKLWN with the necessary financial and contact 

information by 15 February of each year to allow BCKLWN to issue the BID invoices 

for the forthcoming BID year 

 

3.3   The BID Levy Invoice will be sent under separate cover to the NNDR Bill 

 

3.4 The BID Invoice will be dated 1 April of the BID year 

 

31



Page 5 of 13 

3.5 The BID Levy is payable in ten monthly instalments, or a number of monthly 

instalments equal to the number of months remaining in the financial year minus one, 

with the first instalment due a minimum of 14 days after the invoice date.  Lump sum 

payments are also accepted. 

3.6 The BID Levy is payable by Direct Debit, Bank Transfer, Online or over the telephone 

by Debit or Credit Card.   

3.7 If payment is not received within 14 days of an instalment due date, BCKLWN will 

commence recovery proceedings in accordance with Section 4 of this agreement. 

4 Recovery and Enforcement of the BID Levy 

4.1 BCKLWN will use the statutory recovery and enforcement procedures for NNDR as 

the recovery and enforcement procedures for payment of the BID Levy  

4.2 Subject to the table at 4.3, BCKLWN will decide the most appropriate timing of 

recovery action   

4.3 BCKLWN will use the outline recovery process as below, including any special 

conditions: 

Recovery Stage When Used Special Conditions 
Reminder Minimum of 14 days after the 

instalment due date 

No Reminders to be issued 

with a value under £5 

Summons Minimum of 17 days after 

Reminder issued 

None 

Liability Order Obtained in the Magistrates 

court following the issue of a 

Summons 

Costs are payable by the 

debtor 

Post Liability Order 

action 

Following the issue of a 

Liability Order – can include 

Payment Plans, referral to 

Enforcement Agents or action 

in the Committal Court 

Any action will aim to collect 

the outstanding debt within 

the BID year 

Committal Action incurs 

significant costs for the BID 

Group and will only be 

32



Page 6 of 13 

commenced with the prior 

agreement of King’s Lynn 

BID Ltd 

Write Off When all enforcement action 

has failed 

A list of proposed Write Offs 

will be sent by BCKLWN to 

King’s Lynn BID Ltd for 

authorisation on a quarterly 

basis.  BCKLWN are 

authorised to write off any 

small balance amount with a 

value up to and including 

£10.00 without authorisation 

from King’s Lynn Bid Ltd 

5 The BID Revenue Account - Payments 

5.1 BCKLWN will keep a BID Revenue Account for collection of the BID Levy in 

accordance with regulations and accounting codes of practice in force at the time. 

5.2 As soon as reasonably practical before the BID Start date King’s Lynn BID Ltd will 

provide BCKLWN with details of its bank account into which the BID Levy shall be 

transferred from the BID Revenue Account. 

5.3 BCKLWN will make payments to King’s Lynn BID Ltd by BACS to their nominated 

bank account, based on an estimate of the BID Levy, a deduction for its Cost of 

Collection and an assumed Collection Rate, as shown in Appendices A and B. 

5.4 BCKLWN will pay the BID Levy monies to King’s Lynn BID Ltd in accordance with the 

following payment schedule for Year 1: 

33



 

Page 7 of 13 
 

Payment Schedule Year 1 

Period Amount Due  Paid 

1 April to 31 March  An amount as shown at Appendix A, Table 3, 
less costs as shown in Appendix B, Table 1 

End of April 
of the BID 

Year 

Residual Balance 
The difference between the actual BID Levy 
collected (A) and the amounts paid as above 
(B), providing A is greater than B 

End of April 
in the next 
BID Year 

 
 
5.5 The amount paid during the year will be based on the anticipated BID Levy as shown 

in Appendix A, Table 3, paid in advance, net of costs as shown in Appendix B Table 

1.  If, at the end of the BID year, the actual BID Levy collected is less than the 

payments made to King’s Lynn BID Ltd, an invoice will be issued to King’s Lynn BID 

Ltd for the difference. 

 

5.6 BCKLWN may opt to pay a greater amount than that shown in the payment schedule 

if that amount has been collected and BCKLWN considers it reasonable to do so. 

 

5.7  King’s Lynn BID ltd and BCKLWN may also jointly agree payment of a lesser amount 

than that shown in the initial payment schedule. 

   

5.8 The payment schedule for each subsequent BID Year will be agreed with the BID 

Group by the end of March of the preceding year and will consider any lessons 

learned about collection performance and issues for any prior BID years. 

 

 6 The BID Revenue Account - Costs 
  

6.1 BCKLWN will invoice King’s Lynn BID Ltd for their costs relating to the billing, 

collection and recovery of the BID Levy, and any other costs or deductions.  These 

are shown at Appendix B. 

 

6.2 All costs will be liable to VAT where applicable and in the usual manner, and subject 

to BCKLWN’s normal payment terms. 

 

 
 
 

34



Page 8 of 13 

7 Monitoring 

7.1 At the start of each BID year BCKLWN will provide a list to King’s Lynn BID Ltd of all 

the BID Levy Payers, the property address and the amount of the Levy due. 

7.2 During each BID year, BCKLWN will provide quarterly Management Information to 

King’s Lynn BID Ltd including: 

• Total amount of the BID Levy due for the year

• Total amount of the BID Levy collected for the year

• Recovery action taken

• Individual Levy accounts in arrears (at Summons stage or later)

• Cases recommended for Committal Action, with details of the Costs the BID

Group would incur

• Any proposed Write Offs for the BID Board to authorise

7.3 During each BID year, BCKLWN and King’s Lynn BID Ltd will hold quarterly liaison 

meetings to discuss collection and recovery of the BID Levy. 

7.4 BCKLWN will provide King’s Lynn BID Ltd with an annual statement of the BID 

Revenue Account within three months of the end of each BID year 

7.5 The BID Revenue Account will be subject to the normal internal and external audit 

arrangements of both BCKLWN and King’s Lynn BID Ltd and both parties agree to 

co-operate with any audit requests. 

8 Other Items 

8.1 Any requests made under the Data Protection Act 1998 or Freedom Of Information 

Act 2000 will be dealt with by either BCKLWN, King’s Lynn BID Ltd or jointly 

depending on where the relevant information is held, within the timescales prescribed 

in the regulations. BCKLWN will notify King’s Lynn BID Ltd of any such requests 

received. 

8.2 King’s Lynn BID Ltd is responsible for answering all queries relating to the BID, with 

the exception of those in relation to the billing, collection and recovery of the BID 

Levy which will be handled by BCKLWN.   

35



 

Page 9 of 13 
 

 

8.3 King’s Lynn BID Ltd will provide suitable contact details for BCKLWN to refer queries 

to, and will deal with any queries raised within five working days 

 

8.4 BCKLWN will provide suitable contact details for queries from King’s Lynn BID Ltd.  

BCKLWN will deal with any queries raised within five working days. 

 

8.5   Any court costs incurred in by BCKLWN recovering the BID Levy, beyond the 

standard £0.50 Liability Order costs, will be met by King’s Lynn BID Ltd.  These costs 

will be discussed and agreed in advance of being incurred.  

 
9 Third Party Rights 
 
9.1 No one other than a party to this agreement shall have any right to enforce any of its 

terms 

 
10 Dispute Resolution 

10.1   If a dispute arises out of or in connection with this agreement or the performance, 
validity or enforceability of it then the parties shall follow the procedure set out in this 
clause:    

10.1.1 Either party shall give to the other written notice of the Dispute, setting out its 
nature and full particulars (Dispute Notice), together with relevant supporting 
documents. On service of the Dispute Notice, both parties shall attempt in 
good faith to resolve the Dispute;   

10.1.2 If both parties are for any reason unable to resolve the Dispute within 30 days 
of service of the Dispute Notice, the Dispute shall be referred to BCKLWN’s 
s151 Officer, and King’s Lynn BID Ltd’s Chairman who shall attempt in good 
faith to resolve it; and   

10.1.3 If BCKLWN’s s151 Officer and King’s Lynn BID Ltd’s Chairman are for any 
reason unable to resolve the Dispute within 30 days of it being referred to 
them, the parties will attempt to settle it by mediation. To initiate the 
mediation, a party must serve notice in writing (ADR notice) to the other party 
to the Dispute, requesting mediation. The mediation will start not later than 30 
days after the date of the ADR notice. 

10.2 The commencement of mediation shall not prevent the parties commencing or 
continuing proceedings in relation to the Dispute under clause 9 which shall apply at 
all times. 

 

36



Page 10 of 13 

11 Governing law 

This agreement and any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with it or its 
subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims) shall be 
governed by and construed in accordance with the law of England and Wales.  

37



Page 11 of 13 

12 Signatories 

Signed on behalf of the Borough Council of King’s Lynn and West Norfolk 

  (Signature) 

 (Name) 

 (Date) 

Signed on behalf of King’s Lynn BID Ltd 

  (Signature) 

 (Name) 

 (Date) 

38



Page 12 of 13 

APPENDIX A:  PAYMENTS 

Table 1 Anticipated BID Levy Year 1 (based on 2021/2022 levy) 

Number RV Levy 

Properties with an RV <=£7,500 270 £1,114,030 £27,000 

Properties with an RV >£7,500 382 £13,024,175 £195,343 

Exempt Properties 3 £42,150 £0 

Total 655 £14,180,355 £222,343 

Table 2 Anticipated BID Levy Collection - Year 1 

1 Gross Anticipated BID Levy (Table 1) £222,343 

2 Apply Collection Rate of 97.5% (allowance for losses and bad debt) £216,784 

Table 3 Payments of the BID Levy to the BID Group – Year 1 

Period Basis Amount Date Paid 

1 April to 31 March 80% of the Annual BID Levy 
(Shown in Table 2 Line 2) £173,428 By 30/04/2022 

Residual Balance Any balance of the BID Levy 
Owing TBC By 30/04/2023 

39



Page 13 of 13 

APPENDIX B:   COSTS 

Table 1 Cost of Collection - officer time, postage and annual software costs 

Item Description Calculation Total 

Officer Time 
Officer time needed to manage 
and maintain the BID system and 
collect the BID Levy 

206 hours at 
£18.89 an hour £3,684 

Annual Invoices Production of the Annual Invoices 
for the BID Levy 660 at 65p each £429 

Recovery Notices Production of Recovery Notices for 
the BID Levy  

Est 500 at 76p 
each £380 

Total £4,493 

40



Discover King’s Lynn – Renewal SWOT Analysis, October 2020 

Strengths Weaknesses 
BID Team – Rangers, Manager, Project Asst Relationship with the Council and Council 

perception / understanding of our role 
BID Board – influence and relationships 
with levy payers 

Car park charges and their importance as a 
revenue stream for the Council, importance 
of car park charges to businesses and public 

Relationship with Police Empty premises / rise in vacant units 
Relationship with the Council Relationship with night-time economy 
Input to the Town Board and influence on 
the Town Plan 

Hospitality sector (quality & variety) 

Response to COVID Not enough engagement with levy payers & 
understanding about what we do for them 

Developing relationship with local MP Poor perception of town 
Shift in relations with levy payers for the 
better 

Low aspiration of some businesses and 
general population  

Growing engagement with levy payers 
Relationship with Vancouver Quarter 
Expertise and number of professional 
services businesses 

Opportunities Threats 
Potential collaboration with the Chamber Chambers of Commerce – events, training, 

networking, overlap. 
Town Fund, Heritage High Street Action 
Zone funding, Levelling Up Fund 

Financial impact of COVID, CVAs and 
business closures 

Farmers’ Market Business rates & end of rates relief 
Past events such as Business Week National levy payers who don’t support 

BIDs 
Networking and relationship building – still 
needed 

Conversion of retail / office space to 
residential 

Tourism & staycations Further development of Nar Ouse Way – 
out of town light industrial units 

Use of empty premises Hardwick & free parking 
New website W Winch development 
Work with the College and young people 
Kick Start scheme 
Arts & creative businesses 

41



YOUR BUSINESS 
YOUR BID

King's Lynn BID

King's Lynn BID

HAVE YOUR SAY

www.discoverkingslynn.com

42



Dear Colleague,

It is hard to believe that the time has come to start talking about, and 

planning for, the renewal of our BID term. We have delivered much of what 

we set out to do 5 years ago and I am proud of what we have achieved. In 

particular, events such as Business Week, the monthly Farmers’ Markets, 

our Street Ranger team and the information, advice, signage, and support 

that we have delivered throughout the COVID pandemic. I’ve always 

maintained that businesses would receive value from a BID far in excess 

of the levy paid.

There is still more to do to deliver our 2017-2022 Business Plan and 

respond to the fresh challenges that the pandemic has presented. This 

month we launch a business support scheme; Refocus, Recover & Grow! 

To offer you independent advice, tools and training to get your business 

back on track. I am convinced that now more than ever, King’s Lynn needs 

a BID, to promote the town and grasp new opportunities, to speak up for 

business and to bring businesses together to collaborate.

This is the first of our Renewal conversations with you, the findings of 

this survey will be used to shape the Business Plan for 2022-2027 so 

please do take a few minutes to complete the survey. There will be further 

opportunities to contribute to this discussion in the coming week and 

months. I look forward to hearing from you.

Sharon Edwards
Chair, Discover King’s Lynn

King's Lynn BID

King's Lynn BID

43



15
EVENTS & EVENTS 
SUPPORTED

DISCOVER
LITRES OF 
HAND SANITISER

OV
ER IN LEVERAGE AND

GENERATED INCOME

RADIO LINK 
HANDSETS 
REPLACED

NEW MAYOR’S 
BUSINESS
AWARD

COVID SIGNAGE 
PACKS DISTRIBUTED

TRAINED
482 PEOPLE

6 DEFIBRILLATORS 

INSTALLED & USED ON AVERAGE 1 X WEEK

31
MARKETS

FOLLOWERS
ON SOCIAL MEDIA 

8,000

450
45 57

STREET RANGERS 

STOCK RECOVERED SINCE 2019
FIRST AID INCIDENTS – OVER 50 SINCE 2019

£5,000

LOCAL CAMPAIGN

CHRISTMAS 
EVENTS & 
CAMPAIGNS1

£100,000

WHAT WE HAVE DELIVERED

44



King's Lynn BID

RENEWAL PRIORITIES
We would like to hear your views about BID priorities for the next 5 years. Please fill in the 
questionnaire below, we will use your feedback to build the next 5 year Business Plan.

Please rank the following areas from 1-5 with 1 being the most important

Contact details

Please choose the most important BID services for your business from the following areas 
Tick no more than 8 boxes

Improvements and renewal voting

Name: ................................................................................. Business: ...............................................................................................................................

Contact Number: ............................................................ Contact Email Address: ....................................................................................................

Name of Voter: ................................................................. Voter Contact Number: (If different from above) ......................................................

Voter Email: (If different from above) ...........................................................................................................................................................................

Please tell us the one thing BID could do in the next 5 
years that would most benefit your business?

.............................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................

..............................................................................................................

Would you like to see the BID 
renewed for another term? 

□ Yes □ No □ Unsure

Speaking up for Business

Increased Profitability 
for Business

□ Street Rangers

□ Promote business offers

□ Town Wide procurement –e.g. takeaway 
food packaging, waste disposal

□ Business support incl training courses, 
advice, coaching, and resources

□ Advocate town centre focused
investments & business projects

□ Represent Town Centre interests to 
stakeholders i.e. Council, MP, Chambers 
of Commerce

□ Regular B2B networking & collaboration 
events

Marketing, Promotion 
& Events

□ Events (incl markets)

□ Stimulate the night
time economy

□ Marketing Campaigns -
local, regional, national

□ #Discoverlocal
loyalty scheme

□ Build on the Discover Brand
to promote King’s Lynn
as a destination

□ Enhance the shopping offer 
with Pop-Up shop &
restaurant projects

Town Centre Access 
& Movement

□ Improved signage
into King’s Lynn

□ Town Centre Tourism
& Commercial Map

A Quality Place

□ Planters & baskets

□ Christmas lights

□ Window Vinyl’s

□ Shop front
improvement grants

□ Marketing, Promotion & Events

□ Increased Profitability for Business

□ Town Centre Access & Movement

□ Speaking up for Business

□ A Quality Place

www.discoverkingslynn.com

45



Sector Marketing Access & Movement Quality Place
Professional 5 1 2
Professional 3 1 2
Retail 1 4 3
Hospitality 5 1 4

Professional 5 2 3
Hospitality 2 1 3
Retail 5 4 3
Leisure 2 1 5
Retail 5 4 3
Professional 1 2 3
Hospitality 5 1 3
Professional 2 1 5
Professional 2 1 5
Professional 4 1 2
Retail 5 3 2
Professional 5 2 5
Beauty
Hospitality 2 1 3
Professional 4 1 2
Professional 2 5 1
Hospitality 5 2 3
Retail 4 1 2
Hospitality 5 3 2
Retail 5 4 2
Professional 5 1 2
Professional 1 4 2
Retail 2 3 5
Professional 3 2 5
Retail 2 1 4
Retail 2 5 4
Retail 2 4 5
Hospitality 5 5 5
Retail 1 4 3
Retail 2 4 5
Hospitality 5 4 1
Retail 2 1 1
Retail 1 5 2
Retail 2 3 2
Hospitality 2 4 5
Hospitality 1 4 3
Retail 3 2 2
Professional 1 5 2
Retail 2 3 2
Retail 5 3 4

46



Hospitality 1 2 1
Hospitality 5 2 2
Hospitality 5 1 2
Professional 4 2 3

148 121 140

47



Increased Profitability Speaking Up 
4 3
4 5
5 2
3 2

1 4
2 5
2 1
3 2
1 2
4 5
4 2
4 3
4 3
5 3
1 4
4 3

5 4
3 5
4 3
4 1
3 5
1 4
3 2
3 4
5 3
4 1
4 1
5 3
3 1
1 3
5 5
2 5
1 3
3 2
3 2
3 4
5 1
3 1
4 1
5 1
4 3
5 1
5 2

48



2 3
3 5
4 3
5 1

161 132

49



Please tell us the one thing BID could do in the next 5 years that wou Y/N/ U
Focus on long term town promotion / marketing Yes
The continued opportunity of business development, which increases skills and co Yes
Promote new and small businesses, encourage new businesses to start up Yes

Yes
Make the town appealing Unsure
B2B networking Yes
Continued support of my business Yes
Sack itself, it is another council tax, will councils put business out of business and No
Promote King's Lynn as a destination Yes

No
Include my end of Norfolk street in your activities Unsure
Improving cafe culture, outside seating and drinking spaces, grants to help busine No
Continue to make King's Lynn an attractive, bustling town to establish and build a Yes
Continue to raise awareness of our offering to businesses in the local area Yes
encourage retail usage Yes
Events to bring footfall into the town and to attract visitors from other towns. Street Yes
Increase the profile of King's Lynn Unsure
Sadly I feel that the BID does not financially benefit the businesses. It is just anoth No
To promote interest in local independent business, with any schemes or promotion Unsure
Help us to fight back against the dominance of big business.  Give us the tools to h Yes
Make King's Lynn as attractive as possible for people to want to come and settle h Yes
Provide grant/funding to support our staff training goals Yes
Help keep the town centre remain an atrractive shopping desination Yes
Website that is widely published with Events listing for the town Yes
Promote the unique historical heritage of King's Lynn  Yes
Turn off/terminate the illumination of buildings such as the Custom House - v distra Unsure
Disband and reduce our overheads - no more BID levy No
Promote Kings Lynn as a destination to increase footfall O vote local store would say
Encourage people to stay in town longer & use more services. Make more attractiv Yes
Keep the Rangers, promote the town centre Yes
Inform how (national) Managers can support BID and get involved Yes

Unsure
Yes

Parking subsidy, getting people to stay longer Yes
a safe environment for people to access shops Unsure
promote the high street in events, i.e. Halloween, Easter trail etc. Yes
more street rangers 7 days a week Yes
Keep Street Rangers Yes
Street Rangers, a safer town Yes
Free parking or parking promotions to compete with out of town retail Yes

Yes
Street Rangers, reduce cost of levy for VQ tenants, Indie week, Student Week? Yes
grow events calendar Yes
better parking Yes
Maintain street rangers Yes

50



parking subsidy from 3-5pm Yes
fill empty units, increase footfall Unsure

Yes
for businesses to work more closely together and with KL Mag to promote the tow Yes

51



events night time economy marketing campaigns loyalty scheme
1

1 1
1 1
1 1 1

1 1 1

1

1 1
1
1
1 1
1 1

1

1
1 1

1 1
1 1 1

1
1 1 1
1 1 1

1
1 1

1
1
1
1

1 1

1 1
1

1 1
1
1 1 1

1

1 1
1 2

52



1 1

1 1
1

24 9 22 7

53



Build brand DKL Pop-ups improved signage map planters
1
1

1 1
1 1 1

1
1

1 1 1

1 1 1

1 1 1
1 1
1 1
1
1 1 1
1 1

1 1
1 1
1 1

1
1 1

1 1 1 1
1 1

1

1 1 1
1 1 1 1

1
1 1 1

1 1
1 1 1
1 1

1 1 1 1
1 1 1

1 1
1 1

1 1 1
1 1 1

1 1 1
1 1 1
1

1 1

54



1 1 1
1 1 1
1 1
1 1 1

24 21 15 24 14

55



christmas lightwindow vinyls shop front imp street rangers promote offers procurement

1
1

1
1 1

1

1

1
1 1

1 1

1

1
1

1 1
1 1

1
1

1

1 1
1

1 1 1 1 1
1

1 1
1 1 1

1
1 1

1 1 1
1 1 1
1 1 1

1 1 1
1

1 1
1

1 1 1
1 1
1 1

56



1 1 1 1

1 1 1
1

9 5 18 18 12 8

57



bus support advocacy representation B2B networks
1 1 1

1 1 1 1
1 1
1
1

1 1 1 1
1 1

1 1
1
1 1 1 1

1
1 1 1

1 1
1 1 1

1 1
1 1 1

1 1
1 1 1

1 1
1 1
1 1 1

1 1
1

1

1 1 1
1
1

1

1

1
1

1
1

1 1
1

1

58



1 1 1
1

1
18 24 22 10

59



King's Lynn BID

YOUR 
BID
NEWS

February 2021

King's Lynn BID

King's Lynn BID

60



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

Hello! Welcome to our first printed newsletter of 2021, one of our

commitments for the new year is to produce these newsletters once a

quarter. We will use it to focus on what we have done in the previous

quarter and what’s coming up.

There is always a churn of businesses and managers across the town

centre, so for anyone new to the town, welcome! Discover King’s Lynn

is the trading name of King’s Lynn BID Ltd, the Business Improvement

District for King’s Lynn Town Centre. Our boundary is quite wiggly so

here’s a map to show you the area that makes up the BID.

The role of the BID is to promote and market the town, speak up for and 

support businesses based within the area, and contribute towards

improving the appearance of the town.

You will find our Business Plan for 2017-2022 on our website, go to 

Discoverkingslynn.com/about

If you would like a hard copy, please email us and we will send you one.

Our BID started in April 2017, after a successful ballot in 2016. All BIDs are 

legally bound by a set of regulations and a BID can only run for a term of 

5 years, after which a new ballot is required. We are about to enter our 

5th year and our ballot for a 2nd term takes place this Autumn.

The BID Board is keen to know which of our services you have valued, and

what you might like a BID to deliver in the next five years. We have prepared a

short survey for you to complete and will be holding workshops in the early

Spring. You will find the survey on our website: discoverkingslynn.com/levy-

payers and we will be emailing you a link. If you would like to get in touch to 

talk about renewal, please contact Vicky.

BID Term Renewal

1

King's Lynn BID

61



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

King's Lynn BID

PUMPKIN TRAIL
24TH - 31ST OCT

KING’S LYNN

Events
In 2020, we hosted 5 Farmers’ Markets and we were 

fortunate enough to execute a weekend long Christmas 

Fair. Both events were really successful, and consumers 

showed a great desire to shop local despite the pandemic 

and its restrictions. We also organised a fun Halloween 

Trail and competition for the duration of halfterm week.

Looking back on 2020/ 
What we delivered

We will provide a formal review at the end of this 

financial year to accompany invoices for 2021/22, 

here’s a quick summary of what we have delivered.

Street Scene
Our 2 Street Rangers have remained on the streets 

throughout the pandemic. They have supported the 

Police to deal with prolific (retail crime) offenders and the 

Purfleet Trust with the homeless. They maintained regular 

patrols to watch over empty premises and provided 

a much-needed friendly face and reassurance to the 

retailers and cafés that remained open. They are often the 

ones to pass on key information about grants etc. They 

also played a vital role distributing signage and sanitiser in 

the lead up to re-opening, and afterwards. 

We hung bunting through the town from June through 

to September and re-potted our planters, though these 

couldn’t be distributed in the usual way due to concerns 

about space and social distancing. We also funded a 

number of hanging baskets. 

2

62



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

CECOVERINGCECOVERING

WEAR A FACECOVERING

AT LEAST

COVID Support 
& Re-opening
From the first Lockdown onwards, our focus has been

on supporting you to persevere as a business and reopen

whenever possible. We provided weekly eshots with vital

information about grants, loans, Government funding,

health and safety. We set up a #supportkingslynn cam-

paign with dedicated information for businesses and

updates for consumers about business services available in

the town.

As re-opening approached, we provided Zoom sessions

with a health and safety consultant to help each sector

work through risk assessments and identify necessary PPE.

We gave out packs of signage and sanitiser to assist with

re-opening safely.

We also ran regular Zoom calls for people to check in, ask

questions and feel supported.

Your BID Connections
In 2020, more than ever, the role of the BID as a wider

network of businesses who can lend support, advice,

contacts and expertise came to the fore. The BID team

can help to facilitate this support network, and moreover,

we can provide 1-2-1 assistance. For example;

Grants – we have helped chase payments, complete

forms, support appeals and challenges.

Making connections – we have put businesses in urgent

need of cash flow advice in touch with accountants, and

connected others with solicitors for legal advice.

Simply put, if the BID team can’t immediately assist, we

will know someone who can. Give us a ring, message us

on Socials or drop us an email.

Communications
& Marketing
Communications and marketing are a huge part of our

work. In addition to the regular eshots that go out to 600

business contacts within the BID area, we also produced

and distributed 2 newsletters / information sheets and

have run 2 campaigns, the first being the aforementioned

#supportkingslynn and the second, #Discoverlocal.

Discover Local is our campaign to encourage consumers

to support businesses in King’s Lynn Town Centre. It’s our

take on #shoplocal. We have a Discover Local page on

our website which includes business opening times, direct

links to business websites / social media pages, info on

how to place orders, click and collect and so on. We have

run several competitions to promote the campaign and

have established a direct mailing list of consumers with

over 500 sign-ups and counting. 

We email these subscribers regularly with updates on busi-

ness opening hours and tips about how they can support 

local businesses during lockdown.  

Visit www.discoverkingslynn/discoverlocal

3

King's Lynn BID

63



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

Speaking up for Business
We are the only body that exists solely to promote,  

champion and speak up for King’s Lynn Town Centre 

and the businesses within it. We have done this  

frequently during 2020, including;

• Meeting with MP, James Wild.

• Representing BID on the Town Board, feeding into the

draft of the Town Investment Plan

• Fortnightly meetings with the Borough Council Chief

Exec to discuss issues such as re-opening safely,

provision of outdoor seating and tables, business

challenges, grant funding, car parking fees during

lockdown.

• Regular conversations with the Borough Council

revenues team about grant payments and BID bills.

• Monthly meetings with New Anglia LEP and Norfolk

Chambers to highlight issues facing town centre

businesses.

DiscoverKingsLynn.com
We recently updated our website to improve its relevancy

and to give it a fresh, new look. Part of the website

relaunch included the introduction of our Discover Local

page, and the development of the What’s Here directory,

designed to advertise all 500+ businesses. If you have not

yet filled out your directory entry, email us for the online

submission form.

We use our website to post brand new content,

such as blog posts and local guides. One of our most

exciting new features is the Business Spotlight blog, where

each week we focus our attention on a different town

centre business. We wish to showcase the array of talent

we have here in town, and to highlight the people and the

stories behind the businesses. If you are interested in

having the spotlight, please email us for more info.

Social Media Training, 
Handy Hints, Resources – 
Maybe*
To accelerate the recovery of local businesses after a
challenging year, Discover King’s Lynn has partnered with
Maybe* - a team of marketing, tech, and retail specialists -
to give all businesses across the BID area free social media
support. As part of the Maybe* support package, you will
receive access to the Maybe* online platform, weekly
social media training sessions and access to Wednesday
Webinars. Through this package, you will gain key insights
on how use social media to maximise your business per-
formance and boost the profile of King’s Lynn. It’s not too
late to sign up - email us for the details!

Looking ahead 
into 2021
Marketing & Promotion

4

King's Lynn BID

64



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

Events
It seems that 2021 might not be the year of the party that

we had all hoped for. Nevertheless, we will re-open the

Farmers Market as soon as is feasible and hope to plan a

small number of events for the late spring / summer. We 

are thinking about a food and drink festival, as well as a

family focussed event.

Training & Resources
As in previous years, we will be organising some First 

Aid at Work and Fire Marshal training events from late-

March onwards (COVID-dependent). There will be 12 

places available for the First Aid course, and 8 for the 

Fire Marshal course. Please register your interest by 

emailing us. If there are other topics you would like to 

us to provide training on, please do get in touch.

Communications
Keeping in touch with you is as important to us as 

promoting the Town to consumers. It is, however, a lot 

harder to do well! This year we will be focussing our social 

mediachannels on B2C marketing and promotion, the list 

below is how we will communicate with you:

• Weekly / Fortnightly eshots with important information

and key events. These come via MailChimp and might

go to your spam folder so please do check. If you’re

not receiving these emails, get in touch.

• Quarterly newsletters to your door and on our website.

• LinkedIn – we have a Discover King’s Lynn profile, do

connect with us.

• Levy Payers Facebook Group – send us a request on

Facebook to join.

• Monthly Zoom calls at 1100 on the 1st Weds of

each month to raise concerns, share information and

contacts, and feel supported. Contact us to get the link.

• What’s App – this is a new channel for us and we aim to

use it sparingly, to share important information about

grants, our training and events, free resources. To join

this group, sign up here: https://chat.whatsapp.com/

H2JTa8ui1pFDwLviHHL1bh

5

King's Lynn BID

65



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

COVID Re-opening and Recovery

Refocus, Recover & Grow! 
King’s Lynn BID Business 
Support Initiative
We are committed to the success of your business and the 
town centre as a whole. We know that many of you will be 
re-visiting your business plans, trying to find more ways 
to minimise costs, keep your business alive, explore new 
ideas, so as to be ready to grasp the opportunities when 
the time is right.

Since its establishment the BID has made many friends 
in the local business professional community. We’ve 
approached them and put together a scheme to enable 
BID members to access professional advice to help their 
businesses survive and thrive in the current situation.

How will it work?

Visit our website Discoverkingslynn.com/support and 
look at the business profiles. If you know already who you 

would like to work with get in touch with us using the 
form on the site and we will connect you with them. If 
you’re not sure who might be the best fit for you, feel 
free to contact a couple of the businesses and start a 
conversation. 

We will organise some short webinars to give you an idea 
of just a few of the areas that these businesses cover. 
Look at the list and click the link to book your free place. 
You will also find some additional free resources and 
useful contacts.

What will it cost?

The first business area / project you choose to explore is
free. If there are other areas that you’d like to cover, or
your first advisor has suggested some follow up action,
please get in touch with us as we might be able to fund
additional work or know someone who can!

Signage & Health & Safety
We have freshly designed COVID-signage ready to roll out
as soon as businesses are able to re-open. We will also put
on some refresher sessions on COVID risk assessments
and Government guidance.

COVID Recovery Feedback 
This is your BID and we want to make sure that what we
deliver meets your needs! Over the few next months we 
will be inviting you to virtual meetings to talk about what
else we can do to support you to reopen and recover.

6

King's Lynn BID

66



Useful Contacts
Norfolk Police Town Centre Team

We are fortunate to have 2 Police Officers assigned to the 
Town Centre. PC Mike Hopkins and PC Kayleigh Marsh are 
part of the Town Centre Neighbourhood Team that also 
covers some of the estates close to the Town Centre. 

Mike & Kayleigh provide a visible policing presence in 
and around the Town Centre, primarily dealing with retail 
related crime. They work closely with our Street Ranger 
team and in particular will: 

• Support stores with training to help reduce stock loss.
• Identify worst offenders and use stop search powers.
• Use their powers and presence to deter antisocial

behaviour in the Bus Station and stop cycling through
the town centre.

Whilst Mike and Kayleigh might not always be in the town 
centre, they always carry the town link radio and aim to 
respond to calls. You can contact them as follows: 

PC Mike Hopkins 07967820554

PC Kayleigh Marsh 07989301614

King's Lynn BID

67



King's Lynn BID

YOUR 
BID
NEWS

June 2021

King's Lynn BID

King's Lynn BID

68



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

1

King's Lynn BID

Hello! And 
Welcome Back!
We were still in the depths of winter and lockdown when we wrote our last newsletter, so much has 

happened since then, primarily the easing of lockdown – hurrah! It has been so good to see so many 

of you face to face, whether bumping into you in the street, a chat through the doorway or even the 

luxury of a coffee in an actual café!  For me, probably the most important aspect of re-reopening 

the town has been re-connecting with people.  We often overlook the important social role played 

by our town centre and businesses, the chat at the till, the friendly advice of a shop assistant, the 

impromptu chat in the street when you bump into a friend or former colleague, these little things all 

add up and make a difference to our mood and how we feel about a place. So, thank you from me 

and the rest of the BID team for your friendly service and smiles, you’re doing a great job!

In this newsletter you’ll find some exciting news about funding coming to the town, our plans for 

the summer, what we are doing to support you and your business, and how you can get involved in 

shaping the priorities for a 2nd term BID that will (hopefully) run from 2022-2027.

Please do get in touch with any queries or ideas, remember 

this is your BID and we are here to support you!

Take care,

Vicky
BID Manager

69



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

King's Lynn BID

2

How we are supporting you!

Refocus, Recover & Grow!
At the beginning of the year, we approached several local, 

professional, businesses to help us put together a support 

package that would give BID members free access to advice to 

help their business survive and thrive. We named this scheme 

Refocus, Recover & Grow! This business support package is still 

available. Whether you want to set up or adapt your website, 

get to grips with a marketing plan, look at ways to strengthen 

your business model or find ways to minimise costs, the 

Refocus, Recover & Grow support package can help. Through 

the scheme, Discover King’s Lynn will facilitate an initial 

consultation with a professional service provider, so you can 

access the expert, business advice needed to get your project 

off the ground. We may be able to fund additional consultations 

or follow-up actions, or we may know someone who can! 

8 town centre businesses have already utilised this package, 

ranging from advice on financial support and grants, through to 

developing a marketing plan, refreshing branding and setting up 

new platforms on social media. To see how it can help you, visit: 

www.discoverkingslynn.com/support

Summer 2021

Events
This Summer, we hope to bring excitement and joy to 

King’s Lynn Town Centre with a fantastic programme 

of performances and events! Among these is a 5-week 

stretch of street animations from Lost in Translation 

Circus, which will include an impressive variety of per-

formances throughout the town centre. We hope to be 

able to add to this as restrictions ease, so keep an eye on 

our social media platforms.  From 12th June onwards, the 

Farmers Market returns to the Saturday Market Place on 

the second Saturday of every month from 9am-2pm.

Street Scene
To enhance street aesthetic ready for Summer, we recently 

purchased an additional 25 flower planters and refreshed 

the flowers in the 50 planters which are already dotted 

throughout town. In addition, we plan to purchase a num-

ber of filled hanging baskets for the town over the course 

of the next few weeks. 

To welcome customers back into the centre and create 

some additional street appeal, we hope to purchase and 

install brand new bunting and festoon lighting, as well 

as some decorative flags in select locations. The festoon 

lighting will be used from dusk until the early hours of the 

morning to create an atmosphere conducive to night-time 

eating, drinking, and socialising!

70



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

3

King's Lynn BID

Social Media Training - Maybe*
Consumer use of social media grew massively during the 

pandemic and if your business isn’t using social media to 

good effect, you’re potentially missing out.  Maybe* can 

definitely help! We have bought a comprehensive social 

media support package for you, from Maybe*. Maybe* 

supports businesses by improving your social media per-

formance, so you can reach more customers and boost 

sales.  As part of the package, you can access daily zoom 

drop-in sessions on a range of social media topics, weekly 

webinars covering exemplary social media use from across 

the UK, bite-size blogs full of hints and tips, and the online 

Maybe* platform.

Norbury’s Fine Foods in King’s Lynn High Street is a true 

Maybe* success story. Since attending an Instagram 

training session with Maybe*, Norbury’s have grown their 

following to over 1000 in just a few short months! To up 

your social media game as Norbury’s have, email us to 

gain access to your free Maybe* account. 

First Aid & Fire Marshal Training 
We recently subsidised an Emergency First Aid at Work 

training course for levy payers with the East of England 

Ambulance Service, and have another session scheduled 

for June. One attendee said: “The Emergency First Aid at 

Work course was a really helpful, fun day’s training. I feel 

much more confident dealing with a medical emergency 

now until help arrives. It has a balance of front led 

teaching with some video clips and PowerPoint and hands 

on practice.”

We hope to run additional First Aid training, as well as 

Fire Marshal training, in the second half of this year. If you 

would be interested in taking part, please let us know!

Word from the Street Rangers 
“It’s been a busy few weeks for us since the 

town centre reopened. We have assisted with 

10 medical incidents, retrieved approximately 

£300 in stock and responded to over 420 calls 

from businesses. We continue to make daily visits 

to retailers, restaurants, cafés, bars and offices, 

checking in with you and making sure that you are 

aware of the latest BID news.  We are always here 

to lend a hand so don’t hesitate to contact us.”

Michael & Luciano

71



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

4

King's Lynn BID

Marketing & Promotion
Business Spotlight
At the beginning of the year, we launched the Business 

Spotlight feature on our website which we support with 

lots of social media promotion. Each week we shine a light 

on one local, town centre business to highlight the wide 

array of talent we are lucky enough to have here in King’s 

Lynn. Each business answers a series of questions so our 

audience can get to know a little bit more about what 

they do, who they are and what they love about being in 

the town centre. So far, we have shone the light on 16 

businesses, we’ve had over 1000 readers of the feature 

and we have reached over 24,000 people on Facebook 

promotions alone! If you’d like the spotlight next, email us 

for the interview questions. 

DiscoverKingsLynn.com
Since the relaunch of our website in late 2020, we continue 

to update it with information relevant to the town centre. This 

includes our Discover Local page, which provides business 

opening times, direct links to business websites / social 

media pages, and info on how to place orders. We also have 

the What’s Here directory, designed to advertise all 500+ 

businesses in the centre. If you need to tell us your new 

opening hours, or have not yet filled out your directory entry, 

email us!

Tourism
This summer we will be launching a town centre tourism 

campaign to show visitors of Norfolk that the coast isn’t the 

only place for them to spend the day! By showcasing just how 

much King’s Lynn town centre has to offer to those holidaying 

in wider Norfolk, as well as those living in surrounding regions, 

we hope that we can put King’s Lynn on the map as a destina-

tion of choice and boost footfall throughout the summer. We’ll 

be shouting about the town’s heritage and history, its leisure 

offering and its stellar food and drink scene!

72



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

5

King's Lynn BID

Funding News

Fingers Crossed for 
Additional Funding
At the time of writing and printing this we are waiting to 

hear the outcome of the King’s Lynn Town Investment 

Plan Bid. All fingers and toes are crossed in the hope that 

the town will be awarded £25m to invest in new opportu-

nities for skills and jobs, help to grow innovative business-

es, repurposing the town centre with new experiences 

and enterprises, and creating a high-quality residential 

and leisure offer in the historic town core and river-front.  

Discover King’s Lynn is a member of the Town Board and 

we also Chair the working group that is looking at projects 

about repurposing the town centre, including the public 

realm. 

In addition to the Town Fund, we have been working with 

Norwich and Great Yarmouth BIDs to submit a funding 

proposal to the Community Renewal Fund. This is a new 

funding programme from central government designed to 

replace the role of EU funding. It aims to support invest-

ment in skills, businesses, and communities. Our proposal 

focuses on setting up pop-up shops, a hospitality training 

institute, providing a drop-in business support and advice 

centre and helping businesses to reduce their waste and 

costs. If successful, the fund will bring an extra £160k to 

King’s Lynn this year. We hope to hear mid-summer.

Grant Information
Over the past few months, we have been keeping you up 

to date with all the latest information on the funding and 

grants available to town centre businesses. There are still 

some grants open for applications: 

Go Digital
The scheme aims to enable micro, small and medi-

um-sized businesses to make better use of digital technol-

ogy. It provides expert one-to-one consultancy and the 

ability to apply for grants of up to £500. Digital opportuni-

ties could include how to sell online, reach new customers 

using social media, build customer databases, or develop 

websites and attract new visitors. Deadline is 30th June. 

For more info and to apply, visit:  www.norfolk.gov.uk/

GoDigital.

73



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

King's Lynn BID

As explained in our first newsletter, BIDs are permitted 
by law to run for a 5 year term, at the end of which they 
must go back to levy payers with a new proposal and seek 
approval for a further 5 years. Discover King’s Lynn (King’s 
Lynn BID Ltd) is coming to the end of it’s 1st 5 year term 
and the BID Board feel strongly that there is a strong case 
for a BID to continue for at least another 5 years.  In order 
to do so, we want and need your ideas and support so that 
we can put together a business plan ready for a ballot this 
November. 

A Second Term BID for King’s Lynn? 
Now’s the time to focus on priorities

Please RSVP as places are limited due to COVID safety 

and we’d like to make sure we have enough refreshments. 

If you can’t make any of these dates and times and / or 

would prefer a 1:2:1 meeting, phone call or Zoom, please 

get in touch.

What you’ve told us so far

In February and March, we asked you to prioritise 

5 objectives based on our current business plan. We 

wanted to know whether they are still relevant. This is 

what you told us:

1. Increased profitability for business

2. Marketing, Promotion and Events

3. A Quality Place and Speaking up for Business

4. Town Centre Access & Movement

We also asked you what actions you thought would be 

most important to deliver those objectives. Here are the 

actions that you chose, in order of popularity:

1st Events, A town centre tourism and commercial 
map, Advocacy

2nd Build on the Discover brand to promote King’s  
Lynn, Represent Town Centre interests, Marketing 

 Campaigns

3rd Enhance the shopping offer with Pop-ups

4th Business Support including advice, Information 
and training, Street Rangers, Shop  
front improvements

In this next stage of the consultation, we will be asking 

you questions such as;

What impact do you want BID to have on the town centre 

and your business over the next 5 years?

Which of these objectives is the most 

important for your business sector?

Are these the right actions to deliver the 

outcomes that you want for the Town Centre?

We want to King’s Lynn to be a place that everyone is 

proud of, what makes you proud of King’s Lynn? If you 

don’t feel proud of the town, what would make you 

feel proud?

Please do come and share your thoughts, or get in touch 

directly for a conversation with Vicky and the Board. This 

is Your BID, Your Business, Your Town.

Key Milestones in the 
BID Ballot Process

June Consultation events 

(see box below)

August Launch Business Plan 

2022-2027

October  Ballot papers Issued

11 November Ballot closes

Consultation Meetings
June 2021

Date Venue

7th - 8am Wilko

8th - 5pm The Clubhouse Bar & Grill

10th - 11-12pm WhataHoot Distillery 

11th - 3pm Soul Café

14th - 6pm The Wenns 

15th - 8am Wilko

15th - 6pm Rathskeller

6

74



King's Lynn BID

75



King's Lynn BID

YOUR 
BID
NEWS

September 2021

King's Lynn BID

King's Lynn BID

76



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

2

King's Lynn BID

Hello! 
I hope you’ve all had a great summer despite the very British weather?!  Since our last newsletter all 

COVID restrictions have been eased, and it’s been wonderful to see our town centre bustling with 

people and colour. I have especially enjoyed hearing people laughing, cheering, and taking part in 

our Summer Street Spectacular events, it’s been too long!

September always feels like the beginning and the end of a year at the same time and this September 

is no different. We’re on the home straights to our Ballot for a 2nd Term, and Christmas! 

Thank you to everyone who has come along to a meeting or sent in comments about their aspira-

tions and wishes for a 2nd Term of BID. Just to recap, a BID can only run for a 5-year period and our 

1st term ends on 31st March 2022. The Board and I think that now, more than ever, a BID is needed 

to shout out about King’s Lynn town centre, to listen and act upon business concerns and to bring 

businesses together to collaborate.  To run for another term, we have to pull together a new 5-year 

plan and go back out to ballot to ask you all to vote for us. Every business within the town centre that 

is registered with a rateable value gets 1 vote per rateable premises. 

We will be officially launching our Business Plan for 2022-2027 on Tuesday 21st September from 

6-8pm at the Duke’s Head, although you will have received a hard copy before this. Please join us

to talk about the plan, put forward your concerns and ideas, and have the chance to talk with other

businesses in the town centre. Refreshments will be provided. Please RSVP either by email, text or

DM. All contact details are provided in the page footer.

Renewal Timeline: 

This is Our Town, We are Your BID, Vote for a Stronger King’s Lynn.

Take care,

Vicky
BID Manager

Business Plan Launch  
21st September

Duke’s Head 6-8pm

Postal Ballot Commences      
15th October

Each property/hereditament 

subject to the BID will be 

entitled to 1 vote in respect 

of the proposal.        

Postal Ballot Ends 

11th November, 5pm

Ballot papers received 

after 5pm won’t be 

counted.  

77



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

King's Lynn BID

3

Street Scene
You might have noticed that the town has been a little 

brighter in recent weeks… Not only have we recently 

funded several hanging baskets and 25 planters back 

in May, but this August we also installed 30 lengths of 

multi-coloured bunting and 24 lengths of festoon lighting 

in streets throughout the Town Centre. Our hope is that 

these dressings will make the town more attractive and 

welcoming to its visitors. We also hope that the festoon 

lighting will enhance the atmosphere of the town in the 

evening and help to support the night-time economy. 

What we’ve been up to

Events
Discover King’s Lynn gladly welcomed events back into 

King’s Lynn Town Centre this Summer! Throughout 

August, we organised a series of street entertainers 

and circus acts to perform in the town. As part of the 

King’s Lynn Summer Street Spectacular, Lost in Translation 

Circus joined us every Wednesday to perform exciting 

aerial shows, acrobatics, and parades, while other 

performers joined us on Sundays to perform comical, 

roaming street shows. The events were well received by 

those visiting the town, with performances gathering large 

and receptive crowds. 

From the 1st – 31st August we also ran a free, fun, and 

family-friendly Town Centre Landmark Trail. Participants 

used riddles to locate and name several local landmarks 

spread throughout the centre. To incentivise the trail, we 

placed various offers from local businesses into partici-

pation goody bags and offered vouchers for independent 

businesses as prizes. Uptake was great, with nearly 100 

participation goody bags given out!

Tourism
Part of our job is shout about all the great things that 

King’s Lynn Town Centre has to offer. That’s why this 

Summer we executed a comprehensive marketing 

campaign focused on Town Centre Tourism. We wanted 

to ensure that the Summer’s Norfolk ‘Staycationers’ didn’t 

miss out on the beauty of King’s Lynn Town Centre and all 

its unique sights and experiences!

We placed over 120 adverts in printed magazines and 

newspapers and created our own paid social media 

campaign to compliment these ads, with over 443,000 

impressions so far! There were over 1 million opportuni-

ties for our messages to be seen throughout the 8 week 

marketing campaign, and these messages reached all the 

way across Norfolk, Suffolk, Cambridgeshire, Lincolnshire 

& Essex. 

78



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

4

79



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

King's Lynn BID

5

How we’ve been supporting you

Training
Two Emergency First Aid at Work training sessions for levy 

payers took place in May and June led by the East of Eng-

land Ambulance Service. A total of 21 learners completed 

the 1-day course to become First Aid qualified and many 

found the day both enjoyable and educational! 

If you missed out on these sessions but would like to 

complete the course, please get in touch as we hope to 

organise another towards the end of the year. 

Maybe*
The comprehensive social media support package we 

bought from Maybe* is still available to sign-up to! May-

be* supports businesses by improving your social media 

performance, so you can reach more customers and boost 

sales.  As part of the package we purchased, you can 

access daily zoom drop-in sessions on a range of social 

media topics, weekly webinars covering exemplary social 

media use from across the UK, bitesize blogs full of hints 

and tips, and the online Maybe* platform which tracks 

your social media performance. Get in touch with us to 

access your free account.

Business Spotlights
In early 2021, we launched the regular Business Spotlight 

feature to our website which we promote heavily on social 

media. The feature is there to shine a light on local, town 

centre businesses and to let these businesses share their  

founding stories, superb teams, and unique selling points 

with readers. So far, we have shone the light on 18 busi-

nesses, had over 1100 readers of the feature, and reached 

over 25,000 people through Facebook promotions alone! 

If you’d like the spotlight next, email us for the interview 

questions. E: info@discoverkingslynn.com

Keeping in Touch & COVID-19
We continue to keep you informed of important 

information that might affect your business, such as grant 

information, funding opportunities, training courses, town 

events, and updated government restrictions. Not receiving 

this info? Here are some of the ways we keep in touch with 

levy payers:

• Levy Payer Mailing List - Sign up here:

http://eepurl.com/dIYl1v

• Levy Payers Facebook Group – Request to join link:

https://www.facebook.com/groups/kingslynnbidlevypayers/

• Levy Payer WhatsApp Group – Join using this link:

https://chat.whatsapp.com/H2JTa8ui1pFDwLviHHL1bh

Recently, we had brand new COVID-19 posters made for 

those businesses wishing to keep certain COVID-19 safe-

ty measures in place after restrictions lifted, for example 

mask-wearing, social distancing, and hand sanitisation. We 

also had some posters made simply to remind customers to 

Be Kind. If you’d like some of these materials to place in your 

business, please email the Street Rangers. 

E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com.

Quarter - King’s Lynn

RESPECT ONE ANOTHER, 
LOOK OUT FOR EACH OTHER

Refocus, Recover & Grow
At the start of 2021 we launched Refocus, Recover & 

Grow, a business support package which provides levy 

payers with access to expert business advice. So far, 9 

town centre businesses have utilised this package, ranging 

from advice on financial support and grants, through to 

developing a marketing plan, refreshing branding, and 

setting up new platforms on social media. 

This support package is still available! Whether you 

want to set up or adapt your website, get to grips with a 

marketing plan, look at ways to strengthen your business 

model or find ways to minimise costs, the Refocus, Recov-

er & Grow support package can help. To see how it can 

help you, visit: www.discoverkingslynn.com/support. 

80



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

King's Lynn BID

Word from the Street Rangers 
“Summer has arrived, and it’s been a busy few 

months for us! With children being off school and

families flocking back to the streets, we recorded 

a huge increase in incidents across the

town centre. Between June and August, we have 

attended 84 first aid incidents, assisted with 

reporting 34 issues to the Police and the Borough 

Council, and responded to 108 shoplifting

incidents which resulted in retrieving £5,500 

worth of stock!

We have continued to touch base with our levy 

payers, conducting over 1,200 visits to shops, 

pubs, restaurants, and offices over the summer 

period. As always, we are here to lend a hand and 

can be contacted by 

phone: 07762 897979 / 07762 897980, 

email: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com 

and over the ShopWatch Radio.”

Michael & Luciano

What we have planned

Town Fund Updates
Many of you will be aware of the £25m investment the 

King’s Lynn Town Deal Board were recently awarded from 

the Government’s Town Fund. Vicky, the BID Manager, 

holds a place on said board and ensures that the town 

centre’s interests are appropriately considered. 

A further step forward for this £25m Town Deal will be 

made shortly when the Borough Council of King’s Lynn & 

West Norfolk’s Cabinet and the Town Deal Board are asked 

to sign off the final project confirmations and prioritisa-

tions ahead of them being submitted to the Government. 

We’ll keep you informed of any important updates after 

this!

Dates for the Diary
1st Wednesday of every month 

Monthly Networking Meetings. 

Join us for a coffee at 11am on the 1st Wednesday of every 

month to meet other local businesses, ask questions, voice  

opinions, share information and just generally have a nat-

ter! Keep an eye on our emails, WhatsApp, and Facebook 

Group for updates. 

13th September 

Christmas Retail Discussions

We want to bring retailers together, both nationals and 

independents, to talk about Christmas opening hours and 

restart a regular retail network. We are proposing 8am 

on 13th September. RSVP using the contact details in the 

footer.

21st September 

Business Plan Launch. 

Join us at the Duke’s Head Hotel on 21st September 

6-8pm for the official launch of our new 5-year business

plan. Take the opportunity to share your thoughts, feel-

ings, and opinions of the plan and of the future of King’s 

Lynn Town Centre! Refreshments provided. RSVP using 

details in the footer.  

6

81



Street Rangers - E: streetrangers@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07762 897980 or T: 07762 897 979 

BID Manager – E: Vicky@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07387 752 226 

Project Assistant – E: info@discoverkingslynn.com T: 07761 513635

twitter@DiscKingsLynn facebook@Discoverkingslynn 

instagram@discoverkingslynn  linkedin Discover King’s Lynn

King's Lynn BID

7

More Training: Mental Health 
Awareness
We are in the process of organising a CPD certified 

Mental Health Awareness Course which will be delivered 

by Norfolk & Waveney Mind. This past 18 months, we 

all learned to appreciate the importance of taking care 

of ourselves and our mental wellbeing, so we hope that 

this course will be useful to both employers and staff. 

The course will be 3.5 hours long and would cover 

topics such as: different mental health problems, stigma 

and discrimination, tips on how to have supportive 

conversations about mental health, and sources of 

support and information. 

We have 16 places available, max 2 learners per business. 

Dates/venues TBC. If you are interested, please email to let 

us know. E: info@discoverkingslynn.com. 

Christmas!
It’s never too early to start talking about Christmas! We’ve 

started to plan for this year’s Christmas season, and we 

hope this year’s festivities will be better than ever. Our 

usual Festive Market is pencilled in for the 11th & 12th 

December and will be held indoors. If you’re interested in 

having a stall or know someone who is, let us know. We 

also hope to arrange various interactive activities in the 

run up to Christmas, such as wreath making or cake dec-

orating. If you have any ideas for other festive workshops 

or would be willing to host one, get in touch. Our window 

decorating competition will return this year too, so start 

thinking about those festive displays!

In order to maximise footfall and encourage visitors to 

the town during this festive season, we will be executing 

a comprehensive marketing campaign, including print 

and digital assets and a festive film. We want to showcase 

King’s Lynn as the perfect destination for Christmas shop-

ping and celebrations!

82



King's Lynn BID

83



www.discoverkingslynn.com TWITTER FACEBOOK INSTAGRAM 

King’s Lynn Bid 
2021 Renewal

YOU’RE  
INVITED!
Your Business, Your BID, Have Your Say
RSVP - Tel / Text - 07387 752 226

Help prioritise the direction and 
actions for the next 5 years.

Get involved, have your say in 
rebuilding the town centre.

Come and talk with us about 
what you want BID to deliver 
for your business and our Town 
Centre in the next 5 years.

Discover King’s Lynn, The 
King’s Lynn BID will end in 
March 2022. We want to run for 
a second term, our future is in 
your hands.

84



www.discoverkingslynn.com TWITTER FACEBOOK INSTAGRAM 

King’s Lynn Bid 
2021 Renewal

7th June, 8:00am 
Wilko

10th June, 11:00am - 12:00pm 
Whatahoot Distillery

11th June, 3:00pm 
Soul Cafe

14th June, 6:00pm 
The Wenns

15th June, 8:00am 
Wilko

15th June, 6:00pm 
Rathskeller

RSVP 
Tel / Text - 07387 752 226

Please RSVP as places are limited due to COVID safety and also to book refreshments. If you can’t make any of 
the dates and times and/or would prefer a one to one meeting, phone call or Zoom, please get in touch.

8th June, 5:00pm 
Clubhouse Bar and Grill

85



Email to head office contacts sent June 2021 

Dear 

I trust this finds you well? I gather you are the person to contact with regard to involvement 
in / discussion about BIDs in England. 

I am the BID manager for Discover King's Lynn, the King's Lynn BID. We are now in our 5th 
year of our 1st term, and the Board feels that there is a strong case for a BID to continue for 
a further 5 years. We intend to go to ballot in November this year. 

We have recently held a number of consultation exercises with businesses in the town and I 
am about to pull together a draft business plan. The emerging priorities probably won’t 
surprise you and include; 

• a continued focus on marketing and events
• support for our Street Ranger team
• diversifying the town’s offer
• speaking up for business & the Town Centre

I will send you a copy of the draft plan for comment within the next couple of weeks, in the 
meantime if you have anything you’d like to raise, please do not hesitate to contact me, 

Kind Regards, 

Vicky 

86



Discover King’s Lynn
Draft Business Plan 

King's Lynn BID

King's Lynn BID

www.discoverkingslynn.com twitter facebook instagram linkedin

2022 - 2027

87



King's Lynn BID

A Message From 
Our Chair 

Sharon Edwards 
Chair, Discover King’s Lynn

Dear Levy Payer,

You will be aware that Discover King’s Lynn (King’s 
Lynn BID) has been operating since 2017 and that in 
accordance with the BID Regulations 2004, we must 
now draw up a new 5-year business plan and hold 
a ballot to continue to operate for a further 5-years. 
Our town centre, like others across the country, has 
changed significantly in the last 5 years. Many of these 
changes were not predicted at the start of our term 
and most have been accelerated by the Pandemic that 
has dominated our lives for the last 18 months.

During the Pandemic we had to review and change 
the way that we worked, as did many of you and, 
consequently, this gave us the opportunity to spend 
more time talking with you and better understanding 
your challenges and aspirations. We provided a lot 
of business support, information and advice and 
made sure that your experiences informed local and 
regional policy makers. Our relationships with the 
Borough and County Councils, New Anglia Local 
Economic Partnership, our MP and the other BIDs in 
Norfolk, strengthened considerably and I am proud of 
the impact that we have had on the Town Board and 
successful Town Investment Plan.

We have drawn on all this experience to draft our 
Business Plan for 2022-27 and, since January this year, 

have directly asked you about your priorities for the 
next 5 years. Specifically, we carried out the following 
consultation exercises. 

January – March – Online and paper consultation 
exercise to over 500 levy payers, face to face 
conversations, telephone calls, and Board workshop.

May – newsletter (hard copy and on-line) with more 
detailed information about the Ballot. 

June – group consultation meetings, 1-2-1 meetings 
and emails to further develop and understand priorities.

Your suggestions have been invaluable and are 
reflected in the proposed aims and priorities for our 
next term. 

We are still listening! Please take a few minutes to read 
through this draft and let us know what you think. We 
need your comments by Friday 30th July so that we 
can amend the plan and produce the final version. Send 
your feedback to Vicky Etheridge, BID Manager either 
by email: vicky@discoverkingslynn.com or telephone 
Vicky to discuss: 07387 752 226

88



Delivery Highlights
2017 - 2021

6 DEFIBRILLATORS 

INSTALLED & USED ON AVERAGE 1 X WEEK

CHRISTMAS EVENTS 
AND ENTERTAINMENT

MONTHLY
FARMERS
MARKETS

NEW RADIOS
FOR

RETAILERS &
NIGHT - TIME
ECONOMY
BUSINESSES

DISCOVER
KING’S LYNN

ESTABLISHED B2C BRAND

STREET RANGER TEAM &

WATCH SCHEME

ANNUAL
BUSINESS
WEEKSUPPORT

MEASURES

COVID 

. R

EGULAR TRAINING EVENTS . REGULAR TRAININ
G 

EV
EN

TS
 

SUPPORT FOR THE SHOP

REFOCUS
RECOVER

& GROW
SCHEME WEEK

ANNUAL
COCKTAIL

89



King's Lynn BID

Draft Business Plan 
2022-2027

Aims

We will strive to be:

Our values

• Ambitious

• Collaborative

• Flexible

• Creative

King's Lynn BID

• Transparent

• Accountable

• Approachable

• Inclusive

To create a strong town centre 
of which we are all proud, 
where businesses thrive, new 
and creative opportunities are 
encouraged, and visitors choose 
to return again and again.

“ “

90



King's Lynn BID

Technical Details

We are proposing that the BID Boundary remains 
unchanged for 2022-27. There will be no changes to 
the rate of levy collection which will remain at 1.5% of 
rateable value or £100 per year for those businesses 
with a rateable value of £7,500 or less. Exceptions 
will also remain in place for places of worship and 
non-retail charities. The bills will continue to be 
calculated using the daily charge.

Communication & Information 
for Levy Payers

Over the last 4 years we have learnt a great deal 
about how best to communicate with a wide 
range of stakeholders, and just how critical good 
communication is for the effective delivery of 
our activities. We will build on the channels and 
platforms that we have established, including:

• Quarterly printed newsletter.

• Regular, targeted, E-shots.

• B2B social media platforms, we will consider
and consult on establishing a separate B2B
brand and set of platforms.

• Investment in a CRM system.

• Regular drop-in opportunities.

• Networking events.

• An annual meeting.

91



King's Lynn BID

To shout about King’s Lynn Town 
Centre and all that it has to offer 

We want to attract new and repeat visitors to the 
town to shop, relax, stay, and explore. We will raise 
the profile of the Town as a sub-regional business 
centre and a tourist destination. We will do this by:

• Delivering a programme of regular events and
animations that take place throughout the
town, creating atmosphere and vibrancy.

• Building the Discover King’s Lynn brand to
attract new audiences and reach further
afield. Working closely with Visit West
Norfolk to align resources.

• Developing a series of campaigns that
promote our Town’s strengths and what it
has to offer.

• Working with local partners to develop better
signage and other resources to attract people
into King’s Lynn and around the Town Centre.

To Support & Strengthen Business 

Our focus is to create an environment in which 
Business, both established and new start-ups, 
thrive. We will work collaboratively with local and 
regional partners such as the Borough and County 
Councils, New Anglia LEP, Town Board, Norfolk 
Chambers and Norfolk BIDs to:

• Provide access to quality business advice,
coaching, training, and resources.

• Encourage new, and different businesses to
the town centre, to diversify the Town’s offer.

• Assist businesses to reduce costs and their
environmental footprint.

• Strengthen the Shopwatch retail group
and bring together businesses in the night-
time economy.

• Continue with our Street Ranger team to
deter crime and anti-social behaviour, assist
with retail crime stock retrieval, provide a
sense of safety.

Our Priorities
2022-2027

1 2

92



King's Lynn BID

To Create Pride in our Town Centre 

One of the key messages coming out of recent 
consultation events is the strong sense of pride 
that so many of you have for the Town. All the 
proposed actions will work towards creating a 
stronger town centre that we can all be proud of; 
with this objective we want to make the town look 
it’s best! We will:

• Maximise the opportunities for street dressing
throughout the year, whether that’s flowers
and greenery or lights and bunting!

• Work with the Town Fund and Public
Realm Action Group and other funding
opportunities to push for investment to;

- Improve the appearance of Gateways
into Town.

- Enhance the current offer of outside
seating for hospitality businesses.

- Offer shop front improvement grants.

- Make temporary improvements to
vacant units.

- Create temporary installations around
the town that create interest.

A Voice for Business (& The Town 
Centre Economy)

Now more than ever, Business and town centres 
need a voice and a champion. We have developed 
strong, collaborative relationships with public 
stakeholders in the Town and across Norfolk. We 
will continue to:

• Advocate a town centre focused approach to
investment, using our position on the Town
Board and other funding programmes to
influence funding decisions for the benefit
of the Town Centre.

• Represent Town Centre interests to
stakeholders i.e., the Councils, Chambers
of Commerce, LEP, local MP, with a view to
influencing resources and policy decisions.

• Encourage B2B networking and collaboration
by creating regular within the town network-
ing opportunities and groups such as Shop-
watch and a new Night-time economy group

3 4

93



King's Lynn BID

Together, we can make sure this town has a strong, successful plan in place for the 
next 5 years. If you have any comments, please get in touch by 30th July.

Submit your feedback to Vicky Etheridge, BID Manager either by 
email: vicky@discoverkingslynn.com or telephone: 07387 752 226. 

Thank you. 

Your town, your say.

94



95



96



Discover King’s Lynn
Business Plan 

King's Lynn BID

www.discoverkingslynn.com � � � �

2022 - 2027

97



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

YOUR TOWN, YOUR BID, FO
R

 A
 ST

R
O

N
G

ER
 FU

TURE  -  YOUR TOWN, YOUR BID
, F

O
R

 A
 S

T
R

O
N

G
ER

 F
U

TU
RE  -     

1 98



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

Sharon Edwards 
Chair, Discover King’s Lynn

Vicky Etheridge 
BID Manager

Your Town, 
Your BID, For a 
Stronger Future
King’s Lynn Town Centre is at a pivotal point in its history. At the start of our term 
in 2017 there were signs of significant changes on the High Street; retail was under 
threat from a number of different challenges and the town centre was increasingly 
a place that people visited to relax and meet friends and family. 

The Pandemic of 2020 has precipitated these changes and brought into sharper 
focus people’s values and lifestyle choices. This has consequences for every 
business, and the town centre as a whole, both economically and socially. 

Now more than ever, is the time to work collectively to shape the future of our 
town centre to ensure that policy makers understand and hear the challenges that 
are present, and to ensure that we can grasp the opportunities for investment that 
come our way. 

A YES vote from you will mean that BID can continue to act as the voice for King’s 
Lynn Town Centre with local and regional policy makers. A YES vote will allow us 
to continue to provide the Street Ranger service. A YES vote will allow us to carry 
on promoting the town that you are so proud of to visitors both local and further 
afield. A YES vote from you will allow us to work together to achieve a brighter, 
stronger future for King’s Lynn Town Centre.

This is Your town, use Your vote for a stronger future. 

299



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

Business Improvement Districts provide a wide 
range of essential services across hundreds 

of business communities, not least safety and 
security, marketing and promotion,clean and 

attractive space and a whole range of business 
support services. 

There are currently 259 BIDs in England, with 
100,841 business investing £106,770,198 in 
their business communities. We particularly 

believe that BIDs will be vital as part of the 
revival process once the COVID-19 virus has 
lessened, and the business community starts 
its recovery phase. BIDs are a key lever of fast 

change; they are business led and work  
closely with their levy payers. 

They get the job done.

Prof. Chris Turner
Chief Executive, British BIDs

“What is a BID?
A BID is a defined geographic area within 
which businesses opt (via a ballot) to pay 
to provide additional services. A BID has a 
maximum of five years before it has to ask 
businesses if they want to renew it for a 
further term.

3 100



Discover King’s Lynn  Business plan 2022-2027

National
Landscape The first BID in the UK was formed in January 2005. Since 

then, over 320 BIDs have been established and the number 
is growing fast. In the UK, the majority of BIDs exist in town 
centres, however they are also in industrial, commercial and 
mixed-use locations.

The BID mechanism allows for a large degree of flexibility 
and, as a result, BIDs vary greatly in ‘shape’ and size. The 
average size of a BID is 300-400 premises, with some of the 
smallest having fewer than 50 and the largest at over 1,000. 
Annual income is typically £200,000-£600,000 but can be 
as little as £50,000 or as much as £2 million per annum.

Legislation enabling the formation of BIDs was passed in 
2003 in England, with subsequent regulations published 
in 2004 and 2005 respectively. BIDs were first established 
in Canada in the 1970s and now exist across the globe, 
including in America, South Africa, Germany, Japan, New 
Zealand and Australia.

National

mixed-use locations.

and, as a result, BIDs vary greatly in ‘shape’ and size. The 
average size of a BID is 300-400 premises, with some of the 

National

Legislation enabling the formation of BIDs was passed in 

Annual income is typically £200,000-£600,000 but can be 
as little as £50,000 or as much as £2 million per annum.

average size of a BID is 300-400 premises, with some of the 

mixed-use locations.

National
Landscape The first BID in the UK was formed in January 2005. Since 

then, over 320 BIDs have been established and the number 
is growing fast. In the UK, the majority of BIDs exist in town 
centres, however they are also in industrial, commercial and 
mixed-use locations.

The BID mechanism allows for a large degree of flexibility 
and, as a result, BIDs vary greatly in ‘shape’ and size. The 
average size of a BID is 300-400 premises, with some of the 
smallest having fewer than 50 and the largest at over 1,000. 
Annual income is typically £200,000-£600,000 but can be 

4101



Discover King’s Lynn  Business plan 2022-2027

From left to right

Michael Smith
Street Ranger

Luciano Santos
Street Ranger

Vicky Etheridge
BID Manager

Ilaria Pezzella
Project Assistant

BID Manager

Street Ranger

Ilaria Pezzella

From left to right

Michael Smith
Street Ranger

Luciano Santos

Project Assistant

Discover King’s Lynn, 
The King’s Lynn BID

Your BID team

The day to day running of the BID and delivery of projects rests with 
a small team of 4, our 2 Street Rangers, a Project Assistant and BID 
Manager. Whilst we might not be numerous, we are part of a much 
bigger network of contacts with skills and expertise that we can tap 
into to bring you advice, support, training and much more.

5 102



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

 The team are supported by a Board of Directors who are drawn 
from a range of sectors, national and independent businesses 

within the town centre. They bring skills, experience, and 
knowledge of managing, owning and setting up businesses, 

helping to shape and guide our work. 

We are all committed to delivering the best possible outcomes 
for businesses in the town centre and firmly believe that King’s 

Lynn is a town we should all be proud of.

Meet the board

Top, from left to right

Sharon Edwards
Chair, Partner, Mapus-Smith & Lemmon

Janette Crawford
Vice-Chair, Manager, Wilko

Alan Bedwell
Manager, Sainsbury’s

Jenny Richards
Director, Prontaprint

Liz Harrison
Director, Youngster’s World

Bottom, from left to right

John Harrison
Director, BJ Models & DIY

Veronica Sekules
Director, Groundwork Gallery

Sarah Haynes
Manager, Boots

Julie Easter
Director, Kenneth Bush Solicitors

Michael Baldwin
Owner, Bank House Hotel

Graham Middleton
Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member 
for Business, Culture and Heritage

6103



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

Pu

rfleet Pl

Q
ue

en
St

South
Q

uay

Priory Ln

Stonegate St

Tow
er Pl

St James St

Regent Way

K
in

g
St

Surrey St

H
igh

S
t

New Conduit St

Norfolk St

Market Ln

A
lbert St

Austin St

Old Sunway

Albion St

Tow
er St

Majestic
Cinema

King’s Lynn
Corn Exchange

Custom
House

St James Multi-Story
Car Park 

Train
Station

King’s Lynn
Museum

The BID area
The BID area covers the area shown opposite. This is viewed as 
the core business area of the town centre of King’s Lynn. The BID 
boundaries will remain the same, as per 2017 - 2022.

*Only part of this Street is included

The BID covers the following streets

Albert Avenue

Albert Street

Albion Street

Austin Street

Baker Lane

Baxters Court

Baxters Plain

Blackfriars Street

Boal Quay

Boal Street

Broad Street

Burtons Court

Chapel Street

Church Street

Clough Lane

College Lane

Common Staithe Quay

Ferry Lane

Ferry Street

Granary Court

Hardings Way*

High Street

King Staithe Lane

King Street

Market Lane

Millfleet*

Nelson Street

New Conduit Street

Norfolk Street*

Old Market Street

Old School Court

Oldsunway

Paige Stair Lane*

Paradise Lane

Paradise Parade

Paradise Place

Paradise Road

Paradise Street

Priory Lane

Purfleet Quay

Purfleet Street

Queen Street

Railway Road

Regent Place

Regent Way

Saturday Market Place

Sedgeford Lane

South Clough Lane

South Quay

Stonegate Street

St Dominic Square

St James Court

St James Road

St James Street

St Margarets Lane

St Margarets Place

St Nicholas Street

Surrey Street

Surrey Yard

Thoresby College

Tower Place*

Tower Street

Trenowath Place

Tuesday Market Place

Union Lane

Vancouver Centre

Water Lane

White Lion Court

7

St James Court

St James Road

Stonegate Street

Tower Street

Trenowath Place

South Quay

Stonegate Street

St Dominic Square

St James Court

St James Road

St James Street

St Margarets Lane

St Margarets Place

St Nicholas Street

Surrey Street

Surrey Yard

Thoresby CollegeThoresby College

St Nicholas Street

104



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

Pu

rfleet Pl

Q
ue

en
 S

t

South Q
uay

Priory Ln

Stonegate St

Tow
er Pl

St James St

Regent Way

K
in

g 
St

Surrey St

H
igh S

t
New Conduit St

Norfolk St

Market Ln

A
lbert St

Austin St

Old Sunway

Albion St

Tow
er St

Majestic
Cinema

King’s Lynn
Corn Exchange

Custom
House

St James Multi-Story
Car Park 

Train
Station

King’s Lynn
Museum

8105



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

What We Have  
Delivered 2017-2021

Marketing, Promotion & Events Speaking Up for BusinessMarketing Campaigns Increased ProfitabilityQuality Place

Christmas 
trees & lights

Defibrillators,  
used on average
1 x week

Street
Rangers
Since Spring 2019 

Visits to businesses pcm

Shopwatch calls pcm

1st aid incidents pcm

35

100
200

6 59

Flower tubs and /or 
hanging baskets

Town- 
wide bunting 
(and festoon 
lighting 2021) 
2019-2021

191

#SupportKL 
campaign

#Discover 
Local 
campaign 500

Covid
signage packs

45

2

200
litres of 
hand 
sanitiser 

people 
received 
training

Refocus, Recover & 
Grow programme – 
so far supported 5  
businesses

Street Rangers  
recover an average 
of £1000 worth of 
stock pcm

MAYBE* -  
resources  
and training 
package

57 radio link 
handsets  
replaced,  
new batteries 
provided in  
2021 Business 

weeks 

Community  
renewal fund 
bid pending

£160k

9 106



Discover King’s Lynn  Business plan 2022-2027

Place 
on town 
board

KL Vision 
2035 

Budget 
briefing  
with MP

New 
Mayor’s 
business 
award – 
King’s Lynn 
Champion

BID Manager 
chairs town 
board  
working 
group on  
public  
realm and  
re-purposing 
the town  
centre

Regular meetings with  
Borough Council, LEP,  
Norfolk BIDs, Eastern  
Region BID network, MP,  
local Police team

Influenced focus of 2021  
COVID ARG grant for benefit  
of independent town centre  
businesses

£ 1

26 4
3 3

4 1 1 1 3

2
Farmers Markets

Christmas 
markets,  
incl 1 month-
long event

Christmas 
window 
competitions

Halloween eventsCocktail weeks  
(1 virtual)

Weekly business 
spotlight feature

Christmas  
2020  
illumination 
project

Monthly blog 
posts

Beauty week Easter trailsCraft markets
Summer 
landmark trail

Christmas 
street  
entertainment

Supported 7 organisations 
to deliver other town wide 
events

Summer Street  
Entertainment  
programme

Directory / 
listings

10,500+ 

New 
website 
with

King's Lynn BID

KING’S LYNN CAKES

OPEN

KING’S LYNN CAKES

OPEN

Social media followers

�� � �

9152

users

1
January 1

10107



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

Our Aims & Values
To create a strong town centre of which we are all proud, where businesses 
thrive, new and creative opportunities are encouraged, and visitors choose 
to return again and again.

BID gives a collective voice and network to 
town centre business and community. The 

BID team have proven their skills to bring 
more people into the heart of King’s Lynn, 

as well as to understand the priorities 
of local business, especially throughout 

tough trading periods. Their ability to join 
like-minded people together on projects 

is great news for the businesses and 
residents of King’s Lynn, I hope this will 

continue into the future!

Jake Smith
General Manager, Duke’s Head Hotel

“

11 108



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

Ambitious Set our sights high 

Accessible Contactable, inclusive, always listening

Flexible Responsive and adaptable

Transparent Always open to scrutiny 

Creative Exploring new and different ways to deliver our objectives 

Accountable To our levy payers – this is Your BID

Sustainable Putting environmental considerations at the heart of our decision-making

Collaborative Working with others to deliver the best outcomes

12109



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

Your BID, Your Priorities
Throughout this renewal process, we asked for your thoughts on the future 
of the Town via the methods opposite. Over the following pages you will 
see the priorities that you selected, and how we propose to turn those into 
actions that we will deliver over the next 5 years.

The support from the street rangers has  
been amazing!! There are times when we  

don’t know what we would do without  
them! I have seen them help so many  

customers in the street, as well as helping 
stores to deter crimes and recovering stock. 

Having group radios for support is invaluable in 
the current difficult environment.

Emma Nesbitt
Store Manager, TK Maxx

“

13 110



Discover King’s Lynn  Business plan 2022-2027

How we know

Online and door-to door survey Jan-March 2021

Monthly Zoom Meetings since May 2020

9 Consultation Meetings June – July 2021

Levy Payer What’s App Group

Street Ranger business visits

Levy Payer What’s App Group

Online and door-to door survey Jan-March 2021Online and door-to door survey Jan-March 2021

Monthly Zoom Meetings since May 2020

9 Consultation Meetings June – July 2021

Online and door-to door survey Jan-March 2021

14111



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

15

Your Priorities
1

4

Marketing & Events

Showcasing the Town’s Complete Offer

2

5

3

6

Boosting Footfall & Dwell Time

Increasing Pride in the Town

Promoting King’s Lynn as a Tourist Destination

The Street Ranger Service

112



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

16

7

10

Business Development Support

Stimulating Diversification of the Town Centre

8

11

9

12

Training

Promoting Independents

Speaking up for Businesses & the Town

Promoting a Café Culture

113



Discover King’s Lynn  Business plan 2022-2027

17

13 Enhancing the Town’s Aesthetic Appeal

16 Reducing Business Costs & Carbon Footprint

14 Supporting the Night Time Economy

17 Improving the Attractiveness of Gateways into Town

15 Encouraging Collaboration

18 Creating a Sense of Community

Your Priorities

Supporting the Night Time EconomySupporting the Night Time Economy

Enhancing the Town’s Aesthetic AppealEnhancing the Town’s Aesthetic Appeal

Improving the Attractiveness of Gateways into TownImproving the Attractiveness of Gateways into TownImproving the Attractiveness of Gateways into TownImproving the Attractiveness of Gateways into Town

Reducing Business Costs & Carbon FootprintReducing Business Costs & Carbon Footprint

Encouraging CollaborationEncouraging Collaboration

Enhancing the Town’s Aesthetic AppealEnhancing the Town’s Aesthetic Appeal

Reducing Business Costs & Carbon FootprintReducing Business Costs & Carbon Footprint

Supporting the Night Time EconomySupporting the Night Time Economy

Improving the Attractiveness of Gateways into TownImproving the Attractiveness of Gateways into Town

Encouraging CollaborationEncouraging Collaboration

Your Priorities

Supporting the Night Time EconomySupporting the Night Time Economy

114



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

18

The Maze Group was established 
right here in King’s Lynn over ten 
years ago and collectively we are 
proud to support Discover King’s 

Lynn. We are passionate about 
making our town a fantastic place 
to live and work and furthermore 

making it a place where business-
es and entrepreneurs can thrive, 
Discover King’s Lynn is our way 
of connecting with like minded 

individuals and businesses to try 
and make this happen.

Charlie Roughton
Partner, Maze

“

115



Discover King’s Lynn  Business plan 2022-2027

Our objectives for the second term reflect what you have told us are 
your priorities. This is a combination of building on the things that we 
have delivered well, along with a greater emphasis on  actions that will 
support the recovery of our Town Centre, and enable you to grasp new 
opportunities that recovery might present. 

At the heart of this business plan is the strength of pride in our Town that 
so many of you expressed during the consultation period. The desire to tell 
others about our great Town, to share and promote its many features and 
strengths is something that we all share.

The objectives are set out in the following pages in order of how we will 
focus our resources.

Your Priorities, 
Our Objectives 
2022-2027

19 116



Discover King’s Lynn  Business plan 2022-2027

1
We want to attract new and repeat visitors to the town to 
shop, relax, stay, and explore. We will raise the profile of 
the Town as a sub-regional business centre and a tourist 
destination. We will do this by:

a. Delivering a programme of regular events and 
animations that take place throughout the town, creating 
atmosphere and vibrancy. 

b. Building the Discover King’s Lynn brand to attract new 
audiences and reach further afield. Working closely with 
Visit West Norfolk to align resources. 

c. Developing a series of campaigns that promote our 

Town’s strengths and what it has to offer.

d. Working with local partners to develop better signage 
and other resources to attract people into King’s Lynn 
and to move around the Town Centre. 

What will success look like?

Closing the gap on 2019 footfall figures

An uplift in footfall during holiday season and around 
events

Double the number of website traffic and social media 
followers by the end of the 2nd term

To shout about King’s Lynn Town  
Centre and all that it has to offer

20117



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

2Our focus is to create an environment in which Business, 
both established and new start-ups, thrive. We will work 
collaboratively with local and regional partners such 
as the Borough and County Councils, New Anglia LEP, 
Town Board, Norfolk Chambers and Norfolk BIDs to:

a. Provide access to quality business advice, coaching,
training, and resources.

b. Encourage new, and different businesses to the
town centre, to diversify the Town’s offer.

c. Assist businesses to reduce costs and their
environmental footprint.

d. Strengthen the Shopwatch retail group and bring
together businesses in the night-time economy.

e. Continue with our Street Ranger team to deter crime
and anti-social behaviour, assist with retail crime stock
retrieval, provide a sense of safety.

What will success look like?

Reduction in retail crime and in the value of goods stolen

Reduction in empty premises

To Support & Strengthen Business

21 118



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

4One of the key messages coming out of recent 
consultation events is the strong sense of pride that so 
many of you have for the Town. All the proposed actions 
will work towards creating a stronger town centre that 
we can all be proud of; with this objective we want to 
make the town look it’s best! We will:

a. Maximise the opportunities for street dressing
throughout the year, whether that’s flowers and greenery
or lights and bunting!

b. Work with the Town Fund and Public Realm Action
Group and other funding opportunities to push for
investment to:

i. Improve the appearance of Gateways into Town

ii. Enhance the current offer of outside seating for
hospitality businesses

iii. Offer shop front improvement grants

iv. Make temporary improvements to vacant units such as
shop jackets

v. Create temporary installations around the town that
create interest

What will success look like?

Reduction in empty premises

Improved Business satisfaction with the appearance of 
the town centre

3333Now more than ever, Business and town centres need 
a voice and a champion. We have developed strong, 
collaborative relationships with public stakeholders in the 
Town and across Norfolk. We will continue to:

a. Advocate a town centre focused approach to
investment, using our position on the Town Board
and other funding programmes to influence funding
decisions for the benefit of the Town Centre.

b. Represent Town Centre interests to stakeholders i.e.,
the Councils, Chambers of Commerce, LEP, local MP,
with a view to influencing resources and policy decisions.

c. Encourage B2B networking and collaboration within
the town with regular networking opportunities and
groups such as Shopwatch and a new Night-time
economy group.

What will success look like?

Leverage of funding from public sector sources for BID 
projects

Business satisfaction with BID advocacy and 
representation

A Voice for Business &  
The Town Centre Economy

To Create Pride in our Town Centre 

What will success look like?

Leverage of funding from public sector sources for BID 

Encourage B2B networking and collaboration within 
the town with regular networking opportunities and 
groups such as Shopwatch and a new Night-time 

Now more than ever, Business and town centres need 

Town and across Norfolk. We will continue to:

and other funding programmes to influence funding 

representation
Business satisfaction with BID advocacy and 

Leverage of funding from public sector sources for BID 

Encourage B2B networking and collaboration within Now more than ever, Business and town centres need 
a voice and a champion. We have developed strong, 
collaborative relationships with public stakeholders in the 

Encourage B2B networking and collaboration within 
the town with regular networking opportunities and 
groups such as Shopwatch and a new Night-time 
economy group.

What will success look like?

Leverage of funding from public sector sources for BID 

Business satisfaction with BID advocacy and 
representation

A Voice for Business &
The Town Centre Economy

economy group.

What will success look like?

Leverage of funding from public sector sources for BID 

Now more than ever, Business and town centres need 

Debbie Lewis
Owner, Designs

We love the Street Rangers! They 
always show up and are willing 

to support in any situation. Even 
when assistance isn’t required, 

just knowing the Rangers are 
available in the event of an 

incident is very reassuring. Vicky 
is also always willing to help and 

does her best to provide and 
source answers to our queries, 

whatever they might be.

“

22119



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

BID Rules
In developing the rules that will apply, consideration 
has been given to the British BIDs Industry Guidance for 
Business Plan Criteria, updated 2020.

The Ballot
The Borough Council of King’s Lynn & West Norfolk will 
send those responsible for properties or hereditaments 
to be subject to the new BID a ballot paper before 15 
October 2021.

Each property or hereditament subject to the BID will be 
entitled to one vote in respect of the proposal in a 28-
day postal ballot which will commence on 15 October 
2021, and close at 5pm on 11 November 2021. Ballot 
papers received after 5pm on 11 November 2021 will not 
be counted.

For the proposal to be successful at ballot the result will 
need to meet, as a minimum, two independent criteria 
which are: (a) of those ballots returned by the close, 
those voting in favour must exceed those voting against 
it, and (b) of those ballot papers returned by the close, the 
total rateable value of those properties or hereditaments 
which vote in favour, must exceed the total of those 
voting against.

The result of the ballot will be announced on Friday 12 
November 2021.

If successful at ballot, the new BID will commence 
delivery of services on 1 April 2022 and will continue for 

Finances
A cautious approach has been adopted to budgeting for 
the second term. Historic performance suggests that 
97% of the billed levy will be collected each year and this 
rate has been applied throughout.

The average annual levy available to be spent by the BID 
for the term is just over £220,000.

We anticipate a carry forward of contingency funds of 
£50,000 from 2021/22. We will draw modestly on these 
reserves for the 1st 3 years of the plan as set out in the 
budget.

government funding streams, however as there is 
uncertainty around the funding available we have 
cautiously not included it in this budget.

BID Levy

23

The BID levy will be calculated using the current rateable 
value shown on the 2017 Non-Domestic Rating list for
the duration of the five-year BID term from 1st April 2022 
- 31st March 2027 (subject to the exceptions below).  No
adjustments will be made for any exemptions or reliefs,
or any changes to rateable value for an existing property
as a result of the 2023 revaluation.The levy will be updated
on an ongoing basis for any changes to the 2017
rateable value.

The BID levy will be calculated using the 2017 Non-
Domestic Ratings list for the duration of the BID. The 
exception to this will be any change of use or physical 
change to a property or hereditament including inter 
alia, new construction, merger, sub-division, extensions, 
and refurbishment where the hereditament has no entry 
in the 2017 list but enters a subsequent ratings list during 
the BID term. In these cases the rateable value from the 
subsequent rating list will be used.

The BID levy will have to be paid by a new ratepayer
occupying an existing or new rateable property within 
the BID area up until the end of the five-year term on
31st March 2027, even if they did not vote on the
business plan. Likewise, any new rateable property 
created during the lifetime of the BID will be obliged to
pay the levy.

Properties deleted from the Rating List will no longer 
have to pay the BID Levy from the date they are deleted.

By taking this approach, the BID can budget with certainty 
and is in a stronger position to deliver your priorities as 
set out in this Business Plan. 

The levy rates are not changing, and properties with a
rateable value of £7,500 or less will still pay a flat rate of 
£100 per annum.  Properties with a rateable value of 
over £7,500 will continue to pay a levy of 1.5% of the 
rateable value.  Changes to the 2017 rateable value
during the five-year BID term will be reflected in the levy 
charge. 

The BID Levy will be charged annually in advance for 
each chargeable period to be April to March each year.
The levy will be a daily charge. The BID levy is paid by
the current ratepayer.  If the ratepayer changes during
the five-year BID term the new ratepayer will be liable to 
pay the levy from the date of occupation.  

The owners of untenanted properties will be liable for 
payment of the levy, with no void period.Non-Retail 
Charities with a rateable value of £7,500 or less will be 
exempt from paying the levy and will not receive a vote 
in the ballot.

VAT and Inflation will not be charged on the levy.

The Borough Council of King’s Lynn & West Norfolk will 
be responsible for the administration and collection of
the levy and will charge an annual fee. The fee is shown 
in the budget table on the opposite page.

120



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

Governance
The new BID will be managed by King’s Lynn BID Limited 
(the ‘Company’), a not for profit organisation, limited by 
guarantee.

Existing governance arrangements will apply. The 
Board will continue to have responsibility for financial 
arrangements, contractual obligations, human 
resources, standards and compliance, and strategic 
direction. The Board will be made up primarily of 
appointed representatives of levy payers with additional 
expertise as required. 

Provided that the BID is meeting its overall objectives, 
the Board, shall have the ability to vary service delivery 
and expenditure allocation according to the changing 
demands of levy payers.

However, any change to the BID boundary or to the levy 
rate proposals would require an alteration ballot.

An Operating Agreement has been agreed with the 
Council and will be in place from the start of the Term. 

Notice of the intention to hold a ballot was provided to 
the Secretary of State on 5 July 2021.

All levy payers will receive an annual billing statement, 
including an update on delivery and review of outcomes 
and targets. As previously, we will hold an annual meeting 
for levy payers to report progress against the Business 
Plan and determine priorities for the forthcoming year.  

Year 1 2 3 4 5

Income

Levy 223,500 223,500 223,500 223,500 223,500

Additional income 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

Reserves 5,000 5,000 5,000 0 0

Total Income 233,500 233,500 233,500 228,500 228,500

Expenditure

1. Shout About KL 83,510 83,510 83,510 83,510 83,510

2. Support Business 70,000 70,000 70,000 65,000 65,000

3. A Voice for Business 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000

4. Create Pride in our Town 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000

5. Operational Costs 30,340 30,340 30,340 30,340 30,340

6. Council Charge 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500

Total Expenditure 233,350 233,350 233,350 228,350 228,350 

Retained surplus 45,000 40,000 35,000 35,000 35,000

Budget 2022-2027

24121



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

Informing, Involving, 
Responding
How we communicate with you
Keeping in touch with one another, passing on useful information, sharing feedback about BID activities 
and their impact are a key part of what we do. We will be introducing some new opportunities to improve 
communication based on the feedback that you have recently provided.

25

25 122



Discover King’s Lynn  Business plan 2022-2027

Discover King’s Lynn has worked extremely hard to 
provide support and guidance to their levy payers 

during these unprecedented times.

As an integral part of the retail offer, we feel that 
Discover King’s Lynn is essential in coordinating our 

collective investment to improve the trading environ-
ment. We derive great value from BID’s activities and 

see our levy as a way for us to invest in the town

Alistair Cox
Centre Manager, Vancouver Quarter

“

26

Levy payer What’s 
App Group

�

Weekly – 
fortnightly 
focussed e-shots

Street Ranger  
Business Visits

New for 2022 – 
B2B platform and 
branding across 
all social media

Annual Review 
and Meeting

New for autumn 2021 
– Weekly drop in, meet the team 
sessions (premises being secured)

Shopwatch Retail Group –  
being reinstated post-COVID  
for September 2021

Quarterly  
newsletter  
delivered to  
your door

Monthly  
networking  
sessions

Night-time  
Economy Group – 
to be established  
at your request

Levy payer  
Facebook Group

�

LinkedIn

�

King's Lynn BID

�� � �

�� � �
� �� �
� � � �

26123



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

3 Milestones towards  
to a Stronger Future

1 2From 12 October Ballot papers will  
arrive at all businesses asking you to 
vote on the BID and for the future of 
our town centre. You have 28 days to 
return your ballot paper.

11 November, ballot closes at 
5pm and the results will be 
announced on 12 November.

27 124



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

31 April 2022 , if a majority votes yes 
at ballot, the new term of BID will 
commence, existing services will 
continue and the additional  
commitments will start.

The BID have been extremely supportive to us and other 
local businesses during their first term. They have provided 

information and advice to us that has been helpful and 
especially valuable during the pandemic. They have brought 

innovative ideas to the town, such as the Street Rangers, 
and have encouraged people into the town with events like 

the Farmer’s Market.

We will 100% be backing the BID team and hope that they 
are approved for a 2nd term to continue the hard work.

Paul Turner
Manager, The Wenns Chop & Ale House

“

28125



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

Your Town, 
Your BID, For a 
Stronger Future

Sharon Edwards 
Chair, Discover King’s Lynn

29

T
he early years of a new business are always eventful, pressurised, 
exhilarating and rewarding and the first 5 years of Discover King’s Lynn 
(King’s Lynn BID) have been no different. From establishing a new B2C 
brand in Discover King’s Lynn to adding events to the Town’s calendar, 

setting up a Street Ranger service and delivering regular training sessions, and then 
of course there was the pandemic. COVID not only deepened and accelerated 
the changes that were already underway in our town centre, but also sent shock 
waves across other sectors that seemed to be filling some of the gaps left by retail. 

With events on hold for a year, we focussed on keeping in touch with you, 
listening to your challenges and fears and providing information and advice. We 
strengthened our relationships with the Council and public sector bodies during 
this time and in so doing, our voice became more prominent and well respected. 
Consequently, we shaped the focus of COVID grants and are a key player in the 
development and delivery of the Towns Fund. 

Looking ahead 5 years, towards recovery and eventually growth, the role of the 
BID is even more important. We need to continue, and build on what we have 
started, widen and deepen those critical relationships, and use our voice to speak 
up for business and the town centre. This document, informed by feedback from 
you, sets out how we propose to do this, where we will focus our resources and 
how we will keep you informed and involved, because we are your BID, this is Your 
Town, working together we will create a stronger future.

Vicky Etheridge 
BID Manager

126



Discover King’s Lynn Business plan 2022-2027

YOUR TOWN, YOUR BID, FO
R

 A
 ST

R
O

N
G

ER
 FU

TURE  -  YOUR TOWN, YOUR BID
, F

O
R

 A
 S

T
R

O
N

G
ER

 F
U

TU
RE  -     

30127



King's Lynn BID

128



Procurement update
August 2021

David Ousby, Assistant Director, Programme & Project Delivery (Commercial & Housing)
Cabinet comments from 25/08/21

Tree planting and 
development sites129

A
genda Item

 9



Procurement update
August 2021

David Ousby inc. Cabinet comments from 25/08/21

Summary tree planting across Major 
Housing Project development sites 

Includes Nora 1,2,3 Lynnsport 2,3,4 and 
Marsh Lane

No. trees planted 298

removed / dead 34

private / inaccessible 46

130



David Ousby inc. Cabinet comments from 25/08/21

Future tree planting within Major Housing Project 
developments
scheme name No. Homes new trees to be planted (appx)
Nora 4 105 36
Salters Road 78 38

Parkway 226
3 for one replacement of any trees felled (42 new 
trees in total) plus up to another 50 new trees

Huntstanon Bus Station 47 13

Hunstanton Southend Road 32 11

Hunstanton Waveny Road 26 25
Lynnsport 1  96 44
Totals 610 259

131



Reasons for tree failure in housing 
developments

Trees on private land
• Removal by property owner / 
occupier

• Die due to lack of watering

Trees in public space

• Vandalism
• Removal by adjacent property 
owner / occupier

• Damaged by Open Space 
operatives

• Die due to lack of watering

132



Lynnsport tree planting project
Size (inc. 6m buffer) 3.97 ha

Approximate Number of Trees 6,400 whips (2.5 m 
spacing)

Annual Estimated CO2 Sequestered 7.94 tCO2/year

Trees Cost £16,000
Tree Shelters Cost £13,000 

Two Year Maintenance Cost
Spraying: £8,808
Watering: £25,344

Replanting: £2,280

Two-Year Cost £65,432
10% Contingency £6,543.2

Gross Cost £71,975.2

Potential England Woodland Creation Offer 
Funding £23,040

Net Cost £48,935.2

Remaining HLF Funding for Wildflowers £5,000
England Woodland Creation Offer Maintenance 

Grant £200 p.a., for 10 years.

133



Proposed Lynnsport planting site

134



Further potential tree planting sites
Further 4 Sites for Potential Planting

Planting Site Costs Size (ha) Trees

Hardwick Roundabout, 
King’s Lynn £9,913.12 2.2474 3,596

Kempe Road, West Lynn £2,973.93 0.7473 1,195

Queen Elizabeth Avenue, 
King’s Lynn £2,973.93 0.7313 1,170

Collingwood Road/Nelson 
Drive, Hunstanton £3,965.25 0.9371 1,499

Total £19,825.23 4.6631 7,460

135



Tree planting required to achieve net zero 
CO2 in this district 1,021 Ha
Hectares Planted per 
Year (2021‐2050) 

Cost per Year 
(Excluding Land 
Costs) 

Total Hectares 
Planted by 2050 

Annual Carbon 
Sequestration by 
2050 

5 £28,625 150 352.5 tC ha‐1 a‐1 

10 £57,250 300 705 tC ha‐1 a‐1 

15 £85,875 450 1,057.5 tC ha‐1 a‐1 

20 £114,500 600 1,410 tC ha‐1 a‐1 

34 Ha Scots Pine £194,650 1,021 2,757 tC ha‐1 a‐1 

Source: Tree Planting for Net-Zero, presented to E&C panel 31/08/21, 
background papers

Average Norfolk land values £20,000 / Ha. Supply of farmland in England 
approx. 25,000Ha per annum

136



 

 

REPORT TO CABINET 
 

Open/Exempt 
 

Would any decisions proposed: 
 
Be entirely within Cabinet’s powers to decide  YES/NO 
Need to be recommendations to Council      YES/NO 
 

Is it a Key Decision    YES/NO 
  

Any especially 
affected 
Wards 
 
All 

Mandatory/ 
 
Discretionary /  
 
Operational 

Lead Member: Cllr R Blunt 
E-mail: cllr.richard.blunt@west-norfolk.gov.uk  

Other Cabinet Members consulted: All 

Other Members consulted: CIL Spending Panel  

Lead Officer:  Alan Gomm 

E-mail: alan.gomm@west-norfolk.gov.uk  
Direct Dial:01553616237 

Other Officers consulted:  
Management Team 

Financial 
Implications  
YES/NO 
 

Policy/Personnel 
Implications 
YES/NO 
 

Statutory 
Implications  
YES/NO 
 

Equal Impact 
Assessment 
YES/NO 
If YES: Pre-
screening/ Full 
Assessment 

Risk Management 
Implications 
YES/NO 
 

If not for publication, the paragraph(s) of Schedule 12A of the 1972 Local Government Act considered 
to justify that is (are) paragraph(s)   N/A 

 

Date of meeting:  16 November 2021 
 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) – Consideration of ‘lessons learnt’ from 
the first round of grant applications for CIL funding. 
 
 

Summary  
A successful exercise took place to distribute CIL funds to various types of 
infrastructure project in line with criteria agreed by Cabinet in the CIL 
Governance document. A second round is proposed. The CIL Spending Panel 
has considered a number of changes to our present processes and these are 
set out below to streamline the application processes.  
 
Recommendation 
Cabinet is recommended to make changes to the CIL Spending - 
Application process as set out in Section 3 of this report. 
 
Reason for Decision 
To ensure an efficient process for applicants and promote the provision of 
infrastructure for the growing needs of the Borough through use of CIL. 
 

 
1 Background 
 
1.1 As a Charging Authority the Council has an obligation to: (my emphasis in 
italic / bold) 

 Prepare and publish the CIL Charging Schedule 

137

Agenda Item 10

mailto:cllr.richard.blunt@west-norfolk.gov.uk
mailto:alan.gomm@west-norfolk.gov.uk


 

 

 Determine CIL spend, ensuring it is used to fund the provision, 
improvement, replacement, operation; or maintenance of 
infrastructure to support development of its area 

 Report publicly on the amount of CIL revenue collected, spent 
and retained each year. 

 
1.2 The Borough Council has set up a CIL Spending Panel to assess and 
recommend expenditure on eligible projects. 
 
1.3 We sought applications for CIL funding from community organisations in 
January this year and applications closed 3 months later in April. Some 70+ 
applications were made, and ultimately decisions were made about all 58 of the valid 
application, at the 22 July meeting of the Panel. This was the first time the Borough 
Council had undertaken such an exercise, and it is appropriate to undertake an 
assessment of how it went and consider if changes are required for the next round. 
 
2. Reviewing the process 
 
2.1 Appendix 1 gives a number of discussion points reflecting experience of the 

various stages and elements of the CIL spending processes during the first round, 

and pre and post application. Members may wish to use this list to highlight other 

issues not discussed in detail below. 

2.2 In general terms the application process went well, and a significant number of 

applications were actually made, and some £1,414,211.14 was supported / 

committed to projects. 

2.3 At a meeting of the CIL Spending Panel on 21 September the following items 

were discussed. 

3.  Discussion of specific items recommended for amendment 
 
o Combination of the ‘Local’ and ‘Community’ categories – These were 

originally differentiated to allow a relatively small amount of grant to be given. 

However, the categories of allowable projects in each category proved 

confusing for applicants. Many lower value schemes found difficulty in 

expressing how they were meeting the relevant criteria, but would have 

qualified if they had applied for more money (i.e. the next £ banding). 

Members took a pragmatic view, but the initial analysis seemed too harsh. 

o The wider set of projects that would be allowed for applications up to £50K will 

make applying a more straightforward affair. In essence these are all relatively 

small projects and the totality did not cause any financial stress on the fund. 

o A simpler application form is also proposed for the new ‘Local Community’ 

category to only include the following elements: 

o Match Funding Details 
o Evidence of Need 
o Evidence of support 

 

138



 

 

o To avoid additional reports needing to be created and further points of 

assessment it is proposed that the CIL Spending Panel is authorised to agree 

the new combined category, with the actual payment delegated to a relevant 

officer. 

 This leaves the £50K plus element of the fund (strategic projects) as it was, 
and criteria unchanged i.e. still needing agreement and being signed off by 
Cabinet  

o  

o The combined categories (renamed as ‘Local Community’ projects), are 

outlined in Appendix 2. 

o Timing and notice of the application period / notification of outcome – 

The 3 month period for which the applications were open proved useful in 

giving time to prepare the relevant submission material, however it also meant 

a long wait for decisions on the projects for some applicants. The important 

consideration is applicants knowing when applications would be accepted and 

having time to prepare. 

o The recommendation is that we set a more definite timetable so that 

applicants can prepare submissions and have less time waiting to hear the 

outcomes. 

o It is proposed that the following schedule is implemented: 

Application dates: 
Advertise – Asap  
1st Round - Start: 01/01/2022 Close: 01/02/2022 SP Meeting Early March 
(TBC) Funding allocated by Mid/End March 
2nd Round - Start 01/07/2022 Close:01/08/2022 Funding Allocated by 
Mid/End Sept. 
 

Other issues 

o There were teething troubles with the administration of the process due to the 

fact it was the first ever round of our CIL application funding. Systems were 

new and officers and members were getting used to the procedures. A 

smoother process can be anticipated next time. 

Following on from the above changes there will be a certain amount of adjustment to 

the CIL Governance document and associated Guidance notes, as outlined below. 

Cabinet is asked to delegate the final wording to the Strategic Director in association 

with the Portfolio Holder.  

 Work required: 
 

o Update and produce CIL Governance Document 2022 
o Amend process flowchart 
o Amend application forms and match scoring criteria 
o Create online application details in Keystone system 
o Publish Infrastructure Funding List for 2022 (Statutory Requirement) 

139



 

 

o Update CIL Webpages to reflect changes and review wording to make 
application process clearer 

o Advertise application dates  
o Produce posters for community notice boards 
o Newspaper Notice 
o Internal Affairs 
o Notify Internal Departments/|Staff 
o Notify Parishes/NCC 
o Webpages – Corporate Communications 

o Provide Guidance/training for interested parties/Parish Councils 
o Notify Councillors of timetable for applications 
o Set up online Portal for receipt of applications 
o CIC / Councillor Training 

 

4. Options 

4.1 The options above offer a modest adjustment to the CIL funding scheme to make 
it easier for communities to engage and apply so as to add to or improve 
infrastructure for a growing area. 
  
4.2 Other more radical options could be to: 

o Completely re-design the scheme. This is not felt appropriate as we are only 

in Year 1 and have not fully evaluated all the categories of spend, and the 

current priorities still reflect corporate priorities. 

o No changes – This would fail to respond to the difficulties for applicants, and 

not help a more efficient processing for officers / time saving. 

5. Policy implications 

5.1 None as the broad direction is still the same. We are fulfilling the commitment to 
communities to engage and apply so as to add to or improve infrastructure for a 
growing area. 

6. Financial implications  

6.1 There is sufficient funding available to fund further applications, and the scoring 
mechanism provides a possibility of prioritizing bids should the scheme be over 
subscribed. 

7. Personnel implications 

7.1 None specifically, but it should enable officer time to be more efficiently used. 

8. Statutory implications 

8.1 Our spending and governance needs to conform to the relevant Regulations. 

9. Risk Management implications 

9.1 None specifically. Monitoring of spending and more particularly delivery is 
important to ensure money is directed to improved infrastructure in the Borough. 

10. Corporate priorities  

10.1 The proposals in the document are firmly referenced back to the Corporate 
priorities. 

140



 

 

11 Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 
(Pre-screening report template attached) 
 

11.1. To follow  
 
12 Declarations of Interest/Dispensations Granted  
12.1. None. 

13. Conclusion  

13.1 Some modest changes to the application categories (although not the criteria) 
are proposed to aid the application process, and a clearer timetable for the next 
round will be set out. 

14. Background papers  

Borough Council CIL Spending Panel notes and agendas outline the consideration of 
the particular proposal. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 1 

141



 

 

 

CIL Spending – Notes on recent grant applications processes / 
potential action points 
 

Subject / aspect 
of the process 

Comment / Issues ? Action  
(Highlighted points discussed in 
main report) 

Application 
submission 
Streamlining the 
application 
process 
 

 We clearly set out 
categories of projects, but 
some applications didn’t 
reflect the right categories. 
Could we simplify advice on 
how to apply? 

 

 Can we simplify / 
streamline the 
application process? 

 Combine some 
categories to simplify 
the application process. 

 

Post application 
submission 

 Great deal of telephone / 
email traffic on needing help 
to apply / fill in forms. Time 
consuming to service. 

 Pressure from applicants on 
needing a decision for 
projects. 

 Enhanced use of the 
website 

CIL Spending 
Panel / internal 
processes  

 CIL Spending Panel 
consideration of grant 
applications: 
o Presentation of material 

was clear / 
comprehensive 

o Decision making 
straightforward.  

o More clarity for 
subsequent internal BC 
processes. 

o Post decision processes 
took longer than 
anticipated given first time 
nature of the exercise. 
One off. 

 Can we simplify / 
streamline? 
o Reporting 
o Agreement details. 
o communicating to 

applicants 

 As above combine 
categories 

Communications 
on outcomes 

 Very important to ensure 
clear communications. 

 There was press coverage 
post Spending Panel 
meeting. 

 BC Comms engaged 
early. 

Grant categories / 
priorities – new / 
flexibility of 
spending ideas / 
priorities 
 

 x3 levels of projects, with 
different criteria for each. 
People didn’t always read 
the guidance. 

 Are priorities still relevant? 

 Are there other potential 
categories? 

 Can we simplify criteria? 

 Should criteria be 
expanded? 

 Categories themselves 
are quite wide already, 
suggest no change but 
continue to monitor 

142



 

 

types of applications. 

  Combining categories 
outlined above. 
 

Next round – 
when, whom, 
how? 
 

 Anticipated that we would 
undertake x2 rounds each 
year. 

 The number of applications 
was surprising and a 
challenge. 

 Announce towards the 
end of the year? 

Timeframes 
 

 Last time we gave 3 
months for applicants to 
apply, would a shorter 
period be appropriate? 

 Another round when? 

 Suggest another 3 
months period? 

 Include an 
announcement 

Resourcing 
 

 Conscious about the 
officer effort required to 
launch another round of 
bids / application. 
 

 Consider how to ensure 
internally that sufficient 
time is available to 
service the grant 
applications / spending / 
implementation. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 2 

143



 

 

 
Local Community Projects  
 
The current list of projects eligible for funding and the eligibility criteria are: 
 
Education - Improving social mobility and inclusion to work with partners to improve 
education attainment levels and the skills of local people. 
 
Health - Improving social mobility and inclusion by continuing to assist our residents 
to maximise their opportunities by accessing the support and services they are 
entitled to. 
 
Economic Development - Delivering growth in the economy and with local housing 
to promote the borough as a vibrant place in which to live, to do business and as a 
leading visitor and cultural destination. 
Community Facilities - Creating and maintaining good quality places that make a 
positive difference to people’s lives to maintain accessible, clean, pleasant and safe 
public places and communities. 
 
Green Infrastructure - Helping to improve the health and well-being of our 
communities by supporting our local communities to be healthy and more active 
 
Open Space and Leisure - Creating and maintaining good quality places that make 
a positive difference to people’s lives to maintain accessible, clean, pleasant and 
safe public places and communities and help to improve the health and well-being of 
our communities 
 
Community Transport - Creating and maintaining good quality places that make a 
positive difference to people’s lives and helping to improve the health and well-being 
of our communities by providing early help and support to communities and 
individuals who are vulnerable. 
 
 
Applications for funding up to a CIL contribution limit of £50K 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

144



 

 

 

 

Pre-Screening Equality Impact Assessment 

   

 

145



 

 

 
 
 

Name of policy/service/function 

 

CIL Infrastructure Grant proposal 

Is this a new or existing policy/ 
service/function? 

Existing scheme under which a grant is considered. 
(delete as appropriate) 

Brief summary/description of the main aims of 
the policy/service/function being screened. 

 

Please state if this policy/service is rigidly 
constrained by statutory obligations 

 

The NSPF continues to provide an important function in 
delivering sustainable local plans capable of supporting 
housing and economic growth together with the 
necessary enabling infrastructure and service provision.  
Cross-boundary cooperation is a cornerstone of the Duty 
to Cooperate and of the NSPF; and is of particular 
importance in post-Covid recovery.  It is also a statutory 
obligation. 

 

Question Answer 

1. Is there any reason to believe that the 
policy/service/function could have a specific 
impact on people from one or more of the 
following groups according to their different 
protected characteristic, for example, 
because they have particular needs, 
experiences, issues or priorities or in terms of 
ability to access the service? 

 

Please tick the relevant box for each group.   

 

NB. Equality neutral means no negative impact 
on any group. 

 

 

P
o

s
it
iv

e
  

 N
e

g
a

ti
v
e
 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 

U
n

s
u
re

 

Age   x  

Disability   x  

Gender   x  

Gender Re-assignment   x  

Marriage/civil partnership   x  

Pregnancy & maternity   x  

Race   x  

Religion or belief   x  

Sexual orientation   x  

Other (e.g., low income)   x  

Question Answer Comments 

2. Is the proposed policy/service likely to affect 
relations between certain equality communities 
or to damage relations between the equality 
communities and the Council, for example 
because it is seen as favouring a particular 

No  

146



 

 

 

community or denying opportunities to 
another? 

3. Could this policy/service be perceived as 
impacting on communities differently? 

No  

4. Is the policy/service specifically designed to 
tackle evidence of disadvantage or potential 
discrimination? 

No The specific grant application is judged to 
be contributing to the educational (and 
indirect recreational) provision in respect of 
a growing population in the Borough.  

5. Are any impacts identified above minor and 
if so, can these be eliminated or reduced by 
minor actions? 

If yes, please agree actions with a member of 
the Corporate Equalities Working Group and 
list agreed actions in the comments section 

No Actions: None 

 

 

 

Actions agreed by EWG member: 

Claire Dorgan Sent 06/10 

If ‘yes’ to questions 2 - 4 a full impact assessment will be required unless comments are provided 
to explain why this is not felt necessary: 

Decision agreed by EWG member: ………………………………………………….. 

Assessment completed by: 

Name  

 

Alan Gomm 

Job title  Planning Policy Manager 

Date 26 August /2021 

147



Response to Question from Councillor Gidney to Councillor Blunt regarding CIL applications  
 
Many authorities request the CIL form at validation, and those that don’t have a lot of additional work 
to try to get details of the GIA of developments when an application is granted. If the CIL Form is not 
submitted, the Collecting Authority will not take into account existing floorspace and Revised Liability 
Notices have to be issued and/or formal appeals are taken to the Planning Inspectorate and the 
Valuation Office. I have attached guidance notes provided by Christopher Cant a leading CIL 
Barrister, demonstrating the known issues relating to the administration of CIL and service of CIL 
documents. 
  
Unfortunately most agents are not employed to administer the CIL. Once an application has been 
granted, they have no responsibility to assist their clients with the complex processes involved relating 
to CIL. The CIL liability falls upon the land owner until such time as the developer/applicant assumes 
liability. It can be difficult to ascertain whom is responsible for a development, once the application 
has been granted. as many agents put c/o agent and the Ownership Certificate within the planning 
application only contains the agents details. By taking a proactive approach we are able to request 
the applicants details and correspond directly to the liable party.  This reduces the workload for 
officers and benefits the liable parties which also reduces surcharges, provides a positive experience 
for the applicant and very little rework is required.  
  
We want to ensure that applicants are aware of the CIL at validation stage, to ensure that there is full 
understanding of the cost implications relating to the planning application. There can be serious 
financial consequences, which could affect the viability of a project, if CIL is not taken into 
consideration at the outset of an application. In my experience, there are many agents whom are not 
aware of the CIL and can provide inaccurate information to their client. Many agents have been sued 
for professional negligence, with 2 in this Borough. By taking up the responsibility of CIL with the 
applicant directly, we are also assisting the architects/agents.  
  
By taking a proactive approach, we are able to provide advice to applicants on the CIL processes, 
which forms need to be submitted, how to apply for exemption and also what happens if the CIL 
process is not followed, which includes surcharges for non-compliance.  
  
My approach has seen very few surcharges issued, the avoidance of many exemptions withdrawn 
and to date no formal appeals have been made against us. Agents work with me to assist their 
clients, and the applicants understand the CIL requirements. 
 
  
Councillor Richard Blunt 
Walsoken, West Walton and Walpole Ward 
Cabinet Member for Development and Regeneration 
King’s Lynn and West Norfolk Borough Council 
Parish Councillor for The Walpoles 
 

148

Agenda Item 13



REGENERATION AND DEVELOPMENT PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 2021/2022 
 

DATE OF 
MEETING 

TITLE TYPE OF 
REPORT 

LEAD 
OFFICER/ 
ATTENDEE 

OBJECTIVES AND 
DESIRED OUTCOMES 

8th June 2021 Appointments to Task Groups and Informal Working 
Groups 

Operational Democratic 
Services Officer 

 

 Nominations to Outside Bodies Operational Democratic 
Services Officer  

 

 Local Plan  Alan Gomm To Consider the plan prior 
to submission to Cabinet 

 Towns Fund Update Update Jemma Curtis  

 Rules and Regulations for Camp Sites Opposition 
Members 
item 
submitted by 
Councillor 
Parish 

Stuart Ashworth 
and Alan Gomm 

To receive an update from 
officers 

 Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan Update Duncan Hall  

     

20th July 2021 
– Special 
Meeting 

Town Deal Prioritisation   To note the proposals 

     

27th July 2021 Panel Discussion/Breakout session – Strategically 
looking at car park locations and how people access the 
Town Centre. 

 Panel 
Discussion 

Opportunity for the Panel 
to discuss the issue and 
come up with ideas. 

 Portfolio Holder Q&A Session (if required) 
 

   

 Arrangements for Panel Meetings  Cabinet 
Report 

Honor Howell To consider the report and 
make any appropriate 
recommendations to 
Cabinet 

     

7th September 
2021 

Portfolio Holder Q&A Session (if required) 
 

   

149

A
genda Item

 14



 Opposition Members Item – Start up units/short term 
rentals 

Request 
from 
Councillor 
Rust 

Duncan Hall 
and Vicky 
Etheridge 

 

 Update on the Business Improvement District  Vicky Etheridge  

 Update on the Medworth Incinerator Request 
from the 
Chair and 
Vice Chair 

Alan Gomm and 
Hannah Wood 
Handy 

To receive an update. 

 To consider how the Panel can assist to develop 
policy/strategy on the long term visions for Town 
Centres  

Request 
from the 
Chair 

Chair and Vice 
Chair 

To discuss how the Panel 
could proceed – potential 
to set up some Informal 
Working Groups. 

     

19th October 
2021 

Portfolio Holder Q&A Session (if required) 
 

  Questions to be submitted 
in advance of the meeting. 

 CIL Report Cabinet 
Report 

Stuart Ashworth To consider the report and 
make any appropriate 
recommendations to 
Cabinet 

 Tree Planting on Council Development Sites  Update David Ousby To receive an update on 
what has been planted so 
far, survival/replacement 
rates and plans for future 
sites.  

 Discover King’s Lynn – Renewal Proposals for a 
Second Term 

Cabinet 
Report 

Lorraine Gore To consider the report and 
make any appropriate 
recommendations to 
Cabinet. 

 To consider how the Panel can assist to develop 
policy/strategy on the long term visions for Town 
Centres  

Request 
from the 
Chair 

Chair and Vice 
Chair 

To discuss how the Panel 
could proceed – potential 
to set up some Informal 
Working Groups. 

 Christmas Market Verbal Update Request 
from the 
Chair 

Portfolio Holder  

 Towns Fund Verbal Update  Duncan Hall  

150



 Councillor Bubb to present his ideas for the Waterfront  Councillor Bubb The Chair invites 
Councillor Bubb to present 
two ideas for the 
Waterfront. 

     

7th December 
2021 

Portfolio Holder Q&A Session (if required) 
 

  Questions to be submitted 
in advance of the meeting. 

 Custom and Self Build – Proposals for Council owned 
site 

Task Group 
Report 

Duncan Hall To consider a 
recommendation from the 
Custom and Self Build 
Task Group 

 CITB Update   Request from Councillor 
Morley 

 Guildhall Future Governance Options Cabinet 
Report 

Duncan Hall To consider the report and 
make any appropriate 
recommendations to 
Cabinet. 

     

18th January 
2022 

Portfolio Holder Q&A Session (if required) 
 

  Questions to be submitted 
in advance of the meeting. 

     

     

1st March 2022 Portfolio Holder Q&A Session (if required) 
 

  Questions to be submitted 
in advance of the meeting. 

     

     

12th April 2022 Portfolio Holder Q&A Session (if required) 
 

  Questions to be submitted 
in advance of the meeting. 

     

 
To be scheduled 
 

 King’s Lynn Port 

 Heacham Beach Development opportunities 

 Hunstanton Masterplan Update 

 Southgates Masterplan Progress 

151



 LCWIP Final Version 

 Repurposing of Existing Buildings – Councillor Gidneyy 

 Waste Disposal Discussion 
 

 

152



 

 
 
 

 
  

FORWARD DECISIONS LIST 
 

Date of 
meeting 

Report title Key or 
Non Key 
Decision 

Decision Maker Cabinet  Member and Lead 
Officer 

List of 
Background 
Papers  

Public or Private 
Meeting 

21 
September 
2021 

      

 Revenue Outturn 2020/2021 
 
 
 

Key 
 
 
 

Cabinet 
 
 
 

Leader 
Asst Dir - M Drewery 
 
 

 Public 

 Capital Programme and 
Resources 2020-2025 
Outturn 
 

Key Cabinet Finance 
Asst Dir - M Drewery 

 Public 

 Re-Fit - Street Lighting  Non Cabinet Environment 
Asst Dir – S Ashworth 

 Public 

 Climate Change Strategy & 
Action Plan 

Key Council Environment 
Asst Dir – S Ashworth 

 Public 

 Norfolk Strategic Flood Risk 
Strategy 

Key Cabinet Environment 
G Hall – Director 

 Public 

 Appointment to Alive West 
Norfolk Board Vacancy 

Non Cabinet Leader 
Chief Executive 

 Public 

 
 
 

Date of 
meeting 

Report title Key or 
Non Key 
Decision 

Decision Maker Cabinet  Member and Lead 
Officer 

List of 
Background 
Papers  

Public or Private 
Meeting 

16 
November 
2021 

Gambling Act – Statement 
of Principles 

Non Council Environment 
Assistant Director – S Ashworth 

 Public 

 Enforcement Policy  on Fly 
Tipping and Public Nuisance 

Non  Council Environment 
Assistant Directors – S Ashworth 
and J Greenhalgh 
 

 Public 

153



 

 
 
 

 

 Lynnsport One Key Council Project Delivery 
Asst Dir Companies & Housing 
Delivery – D Ousby 

 Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority) 

 Review of Corporate 
Business Plan 

Key Council Leader 
Chief Executive 

 Public 

 Commercial Team Service 
Plan 

Non Cabinet Environment 
Asst Dir – S Ashworth 

 Public 

 Review of Legal Services Key Council Chief Executive  Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 
para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority) 

 Pay Award 2021-22 Non Cabinet Leader 
Exec Dir – D Gates 

 Public 

 Update to the Major Project 
Board terms of reference 

Non Cabinet Leader 
Asst Dir Property & Projects – M 
Henry 

 Public 

 CIL Report- application for 
grant for 3G and Coaching 
Academy 

Non Cabinet Regeneration & Development 
Asst Dir S Ashworth 

 Public 

 Lynnsport - 3G Pitch and 
coaching academy 

Non Cabinet People & Communities 
Asst Dir – N Gromett 

 Public 

 Balloon and Lantern Policy Non  Cabinet Corporate Services and 
Environment 
Asst – M Chisholm 

 Public 

 Council’s Insurance Tender Key Cabinet Finance 
Asst Dir – M Drewery 
 

 Private - Contains 
exempt 
Information under 

154



 

 
 
 

 

para 3 – 
information 
relating to the 
business affairs of 
any person 
(including the 
authority) 

 Members Allowances 
Independent Review 

Non Council Finance 
Chief Executive 
 

 Public 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Date of 
meeting 

Report title Key or 
Non Key 
Decision 

Decision Maker Cabinet  Member and Lead 
Officer 

List of 
Background 
Papers  

Public or Private 
Meeting 

11 January 
2022 

      

 Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Licensing 
Procedures and Conditions 
Review 

Non Council Environment 
Assistant Director – S Ashworth 

 Public 

 Review of Governance of 
Council Companies 

Non Cabinet Leader 
Chief Executive 

 Public 

 Guildhall Future 
Governance Options 

Non Council Business, Culture and Heritage 
– G Middleton 
Asst Director – D Hall 

 Public 

 
 

Custom and Self Build Site 
– Stoke Ferry 

Non Cabinet Regeneration and Development 
Assistant Director - D Hall 

 Public 

 

Date of 
meeting 

Report title Key or 
Non Key 
Decision 

Decision Maker Cabinet  Member and Lead 
Officer 

List of 
Background 
Papers  

Public or Private 
Meeting 

8 February 
2022 

      

155



 

 
 
 

 

 Budget Key Council Leader 
S151 Officer Asst Dir Resources 

 Public 

 Capital Programme Key Council Leader 
S151 Officer Asst Dir Resources 

 Public 

 Treasury Management 
Strategy 

Key Council Leader 
S151 Officer Asst Dir Resources 

 Public 

 Capital Strategy Key Council Leader 
S151 Officer Asst Dir Resources 

 Public  

 

Date of 
meeting 

Report title Key or 
Non Key 
Decision 

Decision Maker Cabinet  Member and Lead 
Officer 

List of 
Background 
Papers  

Public or Private 
Meeting 

15 March 
2022 

      

 

156


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Discover King's Lynn Renewal Proposal for a Second Term (30 minutes)
	Kings Lynn BID Proposal
	BID proposal ltr 210921 final
	BID Proposal document
	Discover King’s Lynn Proposal for a Renewal Ballot for a Second Term 2022-2027
	Proposed BID Area
	BID Levy Rules
	Operating Agreement with the Borough Council of King’s Lynn & West Norfolk
	Priorities for a Second Term – Proposed Areas of Activity
	Consultation

	DKL Business plan 2022-2027 PROOF 5 5
	KLBID021 - Business Plan Update 2016 PRINT 12
	BID-Extract- FINAL 210921
	BID Details

	BID SLA BCKLWN DRAFT 01042022
	Renewal SWOT
	DKL_questionnaire_REPRO
	Your Business, Your BID (Responses)
	Form Responses 1

	DKL Newsletter Jan 21 REPRO
	DKL_Newsletter_June_21_REPRO
	DKL Newsletter Sept 21 REPRO
	Invite_REPRO
	email to national voters 2
	DKL_Draft_Business_plan_2022-2027_REPRO
	Ballot notification ltr final 250621
	DKL Business plan final REPRO 2.2


	9 Tree Planting and Development Sites (30 minutes)
	10 CIL Cabinet Report (20 minutes)
	13 Portfolio Holder Question and Answer Session (15 minutes)
	14 Work Programme and Forward Decision List
	ForwardDecisions   210921




